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ASSEMBLYWOMAN MARION CRECCO ( Chairperson) : We're 

going to call this meeting to order. As you know the Assembly 

Resolution No. 151 created the New Jersey Task Force on 

Catastrophic and Long-Term Health Care. I want to thank all of 

you for attending and going out of your way to be here to 

testify. 

While people are living longer; this problem grows. 

So we're going to seek answers to several questions: One, in 

light of the Federal government and what they' re doing, how 

much, if anything, should the State do in this area? And, who 

should pay the bill, and should participation in any plan be 

mandatory? We're going to listen to testimony this morning. 

First I'd like to mention who the members are of our 

Committee. Assemblyman William Schuber cannot be with us this 

morning, but he is on the Committee and will be with us for the 

other meetings. Assemblyman Dever in also could not be here 

this morning, and Assemblyman Otlowski. We also have 

representing the Commissioner of Human Service, Dr. Molly Coye 

-- Mr. Paul Langevin. He is representing the Commissioner of 

Health. Marian Bass is representing the Commissioner of Human 

Services, Mr. Altman. Jeanne Sims is representing the 

Commissioner Qf Insurance, Mr. Ken Marin. And Theresa Dietrich 

is representing the Commissioner of Community Affairs. 

· This morning, as our first witness we will have Mr. 

Mark Meiners, who is the Senior Research Manager, National 

Center for Health Services in Rockville, Maryland. Mr. 

Meine·rs? Oh, I'm sorry. It's Dr. Meiners. Excuse me, 

please. Next stop is the optometrist. 

D R. M A R K R. M E I N E R S: Madam Chairman, and 

members of the Task Force. My name is Mark Meiners. I'm with 

the National Center for Health Services Research, which is part 

of the Public Heal th Service. My background is in economics. 

I am a Senior Research Manager for long-term care projects with 

our organization. I specialize in health care financing, and 

health care of the elderly. 
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I'm going to be testifying about the issue with which 

your Task Force is dealing. I want to provide what I see as a 

p-1=oblem ·. definition,. and: then~ also some,- g~neral ·· ideas·'"' fo-r 

possible. public ·roles. •·- Since -r -know· we' re goi:ng, to ·be somewhat 

tight on time -- you have a lot of people you want to hear from 

today, you want to get started, get some background -- I 'm 

going to work from a prepared text. 

The need for long-term care is the leading cause for 

catastrophic health expenditures for the elderly citizens. 

Medicare was not designed to cover long-term care, and our 

private insurance options offering protection against such 

expenditures are extremely limited. As a result, elderly 

persons with !esources who need long-term care usually pay for 

such services out-of-pocket. Since such care is quite 

expensive -- particularly if it is at a level that requires a 

nursing home stay -- people who need it, often end up spending 

down their income and assets until they qualify for Medicaid. 

Through the spend-down process, Medicaid has become the 

long-term care insurance program for many middle class elderly 

persons needing long-term care; a situation that is generally 

unsatisfactory for all parties concerned. The elderly, who 

become eligible for Medicaid through spend-down must first 

exhaust most of their assets. The resource 1 imi ts are quite 

restriGtive, essentially requiring that the person becomes 

impoverished. Even then, some people have difficulty 

qualifying because of seemingly arbitrary nuances of the 

Medicaid eligibility criteria that favor institutional care, 

and set all or nothing income limits sometimes more favorable 

to those already poor, than to those who become poor because of 

Medicaid needs. 

The almost inevitable dependence on Medicaid when 

long-term care is needed, has in turn prompted consumer 

interest in strategies for protecting resources from Medicaid's 

claim. The establishment of special trusts, and the shifting 
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of assets to relatives are options that are being considered. 

When such transfers occur, however, the strain on the Medicaid 

p:rogram increases, because the divested resources are no longer 

available to the State for spend out. To reduce the incentives 

to divest resources, Federal regulations regarding the 

placement of liens on the home, and transfer of assets for 

protecting them in special trusts, have been strengthened to 

make it more difficult to qualify for SSI, and therefore for 

Medicaid. These policies are often viewed as too difficult, 

costly, and unpopular to administer, and many states seek to 

avoid them whenever possible. 

In essence, the State and its citizens are faced with 

what amounts to a "Catch-22" situation. Without long-term care 

insurance options, consumers do not have a reasonable vehicle 

for financial planning -- their protection against the risks of 

catastrophic long-term care needs. Consumers with personal 

resources for a normal retirement, will nonetheless find it 

difficult -- if not impossible -- to save enough to pay for 

long-term care directly should it become necessary. Without 

insurance to help pay the bills, many private patients quickly 

exhaust their resources paying for long-term care. 

This puts pressure on Medicaid, a program which 

already has gaps and inconsistencies in the protection it 

offers, and is the subject of continual cost containment 

attention from states. It also encourages consumers to divest 
rather than spend down, putting further strain on the Medicaid 

budget. The result is that Medicaid is subject to restrictions 

and l imitations which make it less able to serve its intended 

role of assisting the poor. To the extent that states resist 

the pressure to cut back benefits, or eliminate eligibility, 

Medicaid risks being viewed as an alternative to private market 

insurance. This possibility has been mentioned as one of the 

key barriers to the development of a market for private 

financing options, such as long-term care insurance. This 
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problem description highlights the all or nothing situation 

that currently exists with Medicaid. 
~;;::;;._:, .. -- ;Long-te·rm care.- - insurance ·. is an option· that, is 

beginning. ta emerge as one of those· that - seem·· t:o 'have1 'the, most 

promise of a whole menu of options that have been discussed and 

researched, and are still undergoing development and 

examination. Encouraged development of purchase of insurance 

options such as freestanding long-term care insurance, 

social health maintenance organizations, or continuing care 

retirement communities -- that provide consumers the chance to 

pool their risks, and potentially relieve some of the burden on 

both consumers and government. 

Now, one of the most intriguing aspects of the 

development of long-term care insurance is the potential it 

holds for relieving some of the pressure on Medicaid. 

Government payers will benefit if private insurance cap reduce 

the role of Medicaid as a source of payment for middle income 

elderly, by delaying or avoiding the need to spend down their 

resources. It also may be viewed as · an alternative to the 

current incentive to transfer assets to gain eligibility. The 

possibility that there could be savings to public budgets as 

well as benefits to consumers, suggests that there is a public 

role in encouraging such a market. 
A variety of public policy interventions to support 

the emerging market, are possible. A relatively inexpensive, 

yet extremely important role, is that of consumer education. 
Further efforts are needed at both the Federal and State level 

to inform consumers that Medicare and most private insurance 

policies do not provide extended benefits for chronic illness 

and disability. As products become available, consumers also 

need information and guidance to make informed choices. States 

in particular can play a significant educational role in the 

office of the Commissioner of Insurance. They can also 

encourage insurance regulators to assist the development and 
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marketing of such benefits by removing regulatory restrictions 
that inhibit reasonable product development. And 

.experimentation is very important to this area. Significant 

additidnal - supper~ for market development may be achieved by 

coordinating the cost and care management techniques of public 

long-term care programs with those that the private market 

views as important to its success. What I have in mind-­

There are things like case managem~nt, pre-admission screening 

-- programs that the State may already have in place to deal 

with the cost pressures of the Medicaid system. These are 

equally important to the private market development. 

The significant roles states have in financing 

long-term care, along with having been delegated much of the 

responsibility for the structure and administration of 

long-term care programs, also provides incentive for more 

direct support of the emerging long-term care insurance 

options. In particular, the Task Force should carefully 

evaluate the State's current role in financing long-term care. 

The rules governing eligibility for Medicaid through the 

spend-down process should encourage the use of an individual's 

own resources for their long-term care needs. 

Medicaid simply cannot afford to act as. inheritance 

insurance for families, and a private long-term care insurance 

market cannot fully develop if Medicaid indeed plays this 

role. At the same time, it is important to recognize that 
there are situations where Medicaid rules may stand in the way 
of sensible support. Spousal impoverishment brought about by 

the deeming rules in some states is an example of this. In 

structuring interventions to deal with such problems, 

consideratio~ should be given to incentives that encourage 

private initiative and responsibility. 

More aggressive strategies involve direct market 

subsidies. There are strong reasons for encouraging such 

interventions in the market. Long-term care insurance is still 
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in its infancy. While there has been considerable interest in 

product development, the market is still small and quite 

und&rdeveloped,- ~Untidr·,ther:e· ·is more- experience with-_.irisur.ing 

1'ong-te-r~ care---we:.can ..... expect_ progress tp 'be slow-'and 

conservative. The limited market size and conservative pricing 

in turn tends to restrict the market to relatively high income 

persons. -It is in this context that strategies to subsidize 

the market may make some sense. By targeting subsidies to 

persons otherwise unable to afford the insurance, the market 

size is increased and greater numbers of those most likely to 

spend-down to Medicaid are included. 

Market subsidies could take several different forms. 

One approach would be to guarantee full 

asset spend-down for anyone paying 

out-of-pocket for a set number of years. 

protection from further 

through insurance or 

Asset waiver strategies are based on the assumption 

. that a major barrier to market development is the desire for 

asset protection. While this may be important, it is also 

likely that the current market may face affordability 

constraints which loom at least as large as a barrier to 

further development, 

Premium or deductible subsidies .in the form of, say, 

tax credits, or deductions if a person buys a state certified 

level of insurance protection, is another way to support market 

development. This type of subsidy could increase the 

affor~ability of current products. Both asset waiver and 

premium subsidy strategies are targeted to the consumer and 

both could be varied on the basis of .income. 

Other strategies could be in the form of premium tax 

breaks or public reinsurance programs targeted to help insurers 

overcome their hesitancy to enter or expand the market. 

Carefully crafted, a state reinsurance program could serve as 

the basis for a data collection initiative that could help 

overcome insurers' hesitancy to share information on 
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utilization and cost patterns under their programs. The lack 

of such data has been perceived as one of the barriers to more 

rapid market expansion. And I think it wi 11 be important to 

put in a solid data collection, data manage.ment system, both to 

develop the initiative that you're going to be considering, as 

well as monitoring its success as it goes forward. 

Assistance to market development might also be 

accomplished by paying the insurance premium for persons 

eligible for Medicaid on the basis of low income. This would 

serve to broaden the risk pool and help spread administrative 

costs. 

There is no one approach to supporting the market that 

is obviously the best at this stage in the development of the 

market. Depending on specific market characteristics, and its 

particular objective, your Task Force 

o~e, or indeed, several of these 

development of this type of insurance. 

might choose to focus on 

strategies to encourage 

The need for long-term care is the single most 

important cause of catastrophic. health expenses for the 

elderly. I think that's where you need to start, and really 

recognize that right up-front. Although this fact was noted 

nearly 10 years ago in a report by the Congressional Budget 

Office, it is only recently that it is receiving much 

attention. Perhaps the reason for this lack of recognition was 

that there was no alternative, short of the national program 

and . that repeatedly has been avoided as too costly. I think 

the current debate on revisions to Medicare is following that 

same pattern. 

There may be a few things that are included that may 

seem a little like long-term care benefits, but for the most 

part the long-term care program is not being addressed by the 

current legislation being considered on Capitol Hill. It made 

little sense in the past to alert the public to the significant 

financial risk associated with the need for long-term care, if 
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indeed there was no workable solution. I think a break in the 
stalemate---has occurred with the recognition of long-terni care 
as·-an ·insur:ab-le •--1ri-s:k.,:. The; :new cpr:iva'be i.,inanc,ing ,.i~it-ia.tives. 
have :begun:· ·'to·_· shew-- how. ,the . r.isk .. can be. _shared ip.: : a--- way · that 
encourages individuals with resources to participate in risk 
pooling, and in the process, help clarify those areas where 
there will be a need· for more public involvement on behalf of 
individuals without resources. 

I think what you're embarking on with this Task Force 
is really an exciting opportunity. In essence, you have the 
chance to create a new public/private partnership in New 
Jersey. Right now there is clearly still a public/private 
partnership. When you look at the numbers you see that in most 
states private out-of-pocket dollars tend to pay about half of 
the bill, Medicaid pays the other half. It's clearly a 
public/private partnership, but it's very unsatisfactory to 
everybody concerned. So I encourage you to really think in 
terms of trying to create a better environment, look to some of 
these long-term care insurance options. They are still under 
development. They're still very subject to improvement, but I 
do think they provide a useful opportunity to develop risk 
pooling mechanisms that can be appealing to consumers, and 
provide them with a better way to financially plan for these 
risks. 

With that, I'll be happy to answer any questions that 
you might have. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. Do any members have 
questions? (no response) 

Dr. Meiners, are there examples of 
education programs in other states that we 

model 
should 

consumer 
consider 

emulating here, in order to develop widespread awareness of the 
need for long-term health care insurance programs? 
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DR. MEINERS: Yes. The one that comes most readily to 

mind is the SHBA Program -- SHBA, I won't try to remember, 

Senior Health Benefits Advisory Program in Washington 

State. What it is is, it's run out of _the Insurance 

Commissioner's office and uses trained volunteers -- senior 

volunteers who help advise fellow seniors about the 

availability and features in various Medigap insurance 

policies, as well as in long-term care insurance policies; a 

very innovative program, and quite effective in terms of both 

spreading the word, and helping people avoid costly mistakes in 

their decision making. 

A number of other states are starting to follow, North 

Carolina being one that at least tests their.own program to see 

if they can have the same kind of impact in educating consumers. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. We 

appreciate the fact that you're here, Dr. Meiners. 

MS. DIETRICH: Madam Chairwoman, may I add that New 

Jersey has begun such a program. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO:. They have? 

MS. DIETRICH: We have a Senior Health Insurance 

Program in five counties now, and we're expanding it this fall 

through the· Division on Aging. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Which counties are they? 

MS. DIETRICH: We' re now in Camden, Monmouth, Union, 

Mercer, and Somerset. In fact, we have the coordinator from 

Monmouth County here this morning in the audience. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. 

·DR. MEINERS: It is a very important thing.· It keeps 

coming up in the discussion of this issue. Consumer education 

seems like a simple thing, but the fact is that you do need an 

educated consumer out there to both make the right decision, 

and to help create a reasonable demand for the products and for 

this type of protection. So it can't be emphasized enough, and 

it really fits in the spectrum of-- There are less aggressive 
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to more aggressive. Consumer education is something that can 
be done certainly without huge dollars of expenditure. 
Subsidies, of course, can involve more expenditure on the part 
of the State. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. 
DR. MEINERS: You're welcome. 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: All right, the next person 

testifying is Linda Schofield, who is the Assistant Director of 
Government Affairs, The Traveler's Insurance Company, Hartford, 
Connecticut; former Senior Consultant to the Connecticut 
Commission on Long-Term Care. 
LI RD A SCHOFIELD: Good morning, thank you. I'm 
Linda Schofield. I'm pleased to have been invited to report on 
the findings of our Commission's study. We had a similar 
Commission to your Task Force. Governor O'Neil appointed the 
Commission on Financing Long-Term Care, i"n June 1986. 

After a year of research and public hearings.we issued. 
a· report identifying the impediments to private financing and 
suggesting strategies to overcome those impediments. I've 
given copies of the report and the Governor's Action Plan to 
your staff, and they'll distribute that. 

My following remarks are highlights of the findings 
and conclusions and recommendations of our report. I've also 
given Deb a copy of the testimony, which is a little long so 
I'm going to run through and summarize quickly. 

There are a number of social and economic trends 
coming together to make long-term care one of the most serious 
-challenges facing this country. The most significant factor -­
which I'm sure you' re all familiar with -- is the greying of 
our population; particularly increases in the population over 
the age of 85, who are .most likely to require long-term care 
services. 
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Other factors contributing to the growing urgency of 

the long-term care problem include changing family structures. 

Both members of a couple are usually working these days, so 

there is less availability of family care. Members of the 

family live far apart. There are divorces, which inhibit 

people' s ability to provide family care. In addition, other 

factor include: the limited range of options for financing 

long-term care, a public policy bias towards institutional 

care, and a lack of financial preparedness of most individuals 

-- largely because, as Dr. Meiners pointed out, they don't 

understand the issue. They're not prepared. They're not 

educated. They don't save money for the potential need. 

Adding to the problem is this misconception that everyone has 

that Medicare covers them, when in fact it.doesn't. 

The long-term care problem is a delivery problem, as 

well as a financing issue. In Connecticut, we projected that 

by the year 2000 -- which is only 13 years away -- there would 

be a 44% increase in the number of physician visits by the 

State's elderly, a 31% increase in the number of acute hospital 

days consumed by the State's elderly, a 42% increase in the 

number of elderly residing in skilled or intermediate nursing 

care facilities, and a 53% increase in the m.1qlber of elderly 

receiving skilled health care, personal care, and homemaker 

services at home. That's a pretty significant growth in 

service demands over a fairly short period of time. We also 

have projected that given that current rate of growth, our 

formal delivery system will not be adequate by the year 2000 to 

meet those needs. 

In view of these projections it's clear that informal 

care -- which comprises, it's estimated, about 80% of all the 

services that elderly receive is really a crucial . and 

primary source of care. Older persons prefer to be cared for 

at home by loved ones. Informal care is provided without 

expense to the State. And informal care often precludes -- or 
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at least delays -- the need for formal services, thus relieving 
demands-· :-on. .. the:,; public·- . sector , and- on. the - formal delivery 
system·;···-'"Thereff:>re, ·-1:t·' s, -es·sential-'- ·to bo,lste.r. that,_ sys,t-em of-
tn-fuE.mal-= carce-. ·- .... ·. ~ : --~~: , : : ·.· ··- .:. ,,,_ .. '. .. • :· ......... _, _., 

to meet 
likewise 
are even 

Just as the delivery system will not have the capacity 
the future needs, current financing systems will 

not be adequate to meet the challenge, if indeed they 
adequate today. As you know, individuals and families 

pay for long-term care from savings and available income until 
their resources are exhausted. At that point, the state 
Medicaid pr.ogram begins paying the bills for nursing homes and, 
in some states, some limited community care services. 

In . Connecticut, approximately 54% -- ~r $318 million 
-- of our state Medicaid budget is earmarked for health care of 
the elderly. Of that $318 million spent on the elderly, $274 
million goes for long-term care in nursing homes. This nursing 
home bill represents 5. 6% of our entire state budget, and is 
projected to grow to over 7% in the next 13 years if things 
do1;1' t change. That's a pretty big chunk of the whole state 
budget. 

The challenge to the state -- to our state and to your 
state· -- is to design a 
which will moderate the 

comprehensive, coordinated system, 
growth in State expenditures for 

long-term care, assist families to meet_ their long-term care 
needs -- both financial and service needs. The complexity of 
the long-term care financing issue requires a multifaceted 
response. No single element of society neither the 

·individual, the family, the employer, the State, the Federal 
government, or service providers can meet all of the 
long-term ·care needs that have been projected. - Al 1 of these 
parties must collaborate. in addressing the long-te_rm care needs 
of today's elderly, and tomorrow's elderly. 
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My Commission concluded that there are better methods 

of public and private financing that can be found; that the 

_;delivery system, particularly community-based services, must 

grow to accommodate our demographic shifts. And that 

long-range preventive measures must be taken to improve the 

well-being of future generations of elderly, and therefore to 

contain the costs of caring for them. As well as, obviously, 

to improve their quality of life. We made recommendations in 

five broad categories~ 

1) The variety and availability of new methods of 

private financing for long-term care should be increased to 

meet the needs and demands of several diverse market segments 

and to moderate the increase in pressures on public treasuries 

at the state and Federal level. Let me just make a side note 

that very often in looking at older Americans there is a 

tendency to want to lump them all together, and they're not at 

all a homogeneous group. There really truly are very diverse 

segments. So there's no single silver bullet solution. You 

need several different approaches, _ several different products, 

in order to meet the diverse market segments of the entire 

older population. These different products might include home 

equity conversion, insurance, health maintenance organizations, 

continuing care retirement communities, and other innovative 

alternatives. 

Our second recommendation pertains to the availability 

of financing for home and community-based alternatives, which 

we felt must be expanded. These home and community-based 

services, complement and sustain family care giving efforts. 

And, as an alternative to institutional care, represent savings 

to the individual, ·the family, and potentially the public 

sector; again, to say nothing of the fact that it's a much 

preferred and better quality system of providing care in the 

eyes of most elderly. 
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The third recommendation: Long-range strategies must 
be developed :·_:and: -supported- .to -enhance the personnel resources 
avaflab!e tp··meet tjle· 1ong.:...term care· ne$ds i,-and to:- moderate ,,the 

inc-1:-ease·. in :,demand-.-'"· -We need long-ra·nge ·.:st~ategi-es to,. moderate 

the increase in demand for long-term care services. These 
positive long-range strategies should include extended 
employment of older adults, disease prevention and health 

promotion, an expanded support of research into the diseases of 

old age, and expanded support for the training of health care 

professionals. I don't know what the setup is in this State. 

We have a real shortage of nurses and physicians, part~cularly 

in the area of geriatrics. As competition between nursing 
homes and hospitals for staff grows, the nursing homes are the 

quickest ones to lose their staff. It's a real problem. 
The next recommendation pertains to consumer 

education. We feel that programs regarding long-term care 

financing should be expanded at both the state and Federal 

level. A more educated populace will understand the need for 

timely personal financial planning efforts. Furthermore, 

consumer education, together with an effective program of 
consumer protection, will enable indivipuals to make selective, 

informed choices. 
impoverishment 
support moderated. 

As a consequence, traumas -- such as spousal 

may be reduced and pressures for public 

The fifth recommendation, data collection efforts and 
public dissemination of information regarding long-term care 
service utilization must be improved. The lack of data -­
particularly longitudinal data which describes long-term care 
service utilization over time -- presents design and product 

pricing_ difficulties for government, service providers, and the 

private sector insurers alike. We happen to have a rich data 

system in our state that's never really been tapped and meshed 

in order to yield some information that would be very useful. 

We've been fortunate in getting a Robert Wood Johnson 
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Foundation grant just recently, to work on developing some 

alternative financing methods; and as a part of that to begin 

developiag, •our- , data re.sources:;. :_::_But ::it ~s _ surprising-_ how ·_much 

data-·- states rr-eally do .. - hav.e, that , they :.don.'.t._, e:v.en:_ .know._. o.f, 

particularly one department that may not talk to another 

department. If you can get those guys talking to each o.ther 

it's very helpful. 

Information is really the key to managing risk, and 

its availability will therefore expedite the entry into the 

market of more products, and more product sponsors. And of 

course will also assist the State in developing new programs. 

In addition, we recommended that Governor O'Neil work 

with the Connecticut congressional delegation, with other 

members of Congress, and with the National Governors' 

Association, to strive for an appropriate and expanded Federal 

response. Tax incentives are the most obvious means by which 

the Federal government can encourage private financing of 

long-term care. Tax reforms may include removing tax barriers 

to new, as well as existing, private methods of financing 

long-term- care. And creating incentives for employers, 

individuals, insurers,· and other financial institutions, to 

exp-and their roles in long-term care. 

In view of the essential role that families play in 

providing informal long-term care services to their elders, the 

Federal government should expand incentives and support these 

family efforts. The Federal role should also include an 

expansion of Federal funding in the field of geriatric 

research, and in the training of heal th professionals in the 

field of aging. Finally, the Federal government must begin to 

look more favorably on applications for Medica~e and Medicaid 

waivers from those states -- such as your own, and my own -­

interested in testing new models of long-term care delivery and 

financing. 
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The opportunity and necessity for State leadership 
-· - - exists in the area of long-term care financing. I'm personally 

'"' "' . ,::. , ,,,ve,11:,y,., encouraged to se~ the number of states taking action on 

.. - .. this_ .. _..is-sue, and I feel that the sharing of information and -

coordination of efforts between states, can only expedite 

progress. To that end, I'd be more than happy to work with 

your staff, serve as a resource for you, and direct you to 

persons in other states who are also working on this topic. If 

I can answer any questions, I'd be more than happy to. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Any questions from the 

-Committee? 
MR. LANGEVIN: I do have one question. Is there any 

state that has even a year's exper~ence with something that 

seems to be working, because what I hear you saying today 

paints a fairly bleak picture for changes in societal norms, 

and also for the delivery system, even if we would be able to 

pay for it in the State of New Jersey? 

MS. SCHOFIELD: Did I sound that bleak? (laughter) 

There are several state initiatives. Wisconsin, for example, 

has begun expanding its programs for communi ty-"based services 

and bolstering family care efforts by providing cash assistance 

and respite care services to families that are caring for their 

elders at home. California also has a program like that. 
There are several states that are beginning educational 

programs. My state has taken some actions. The Governor 

immediately put together an action plan, included certain 

things like expanding our home equity conversion program, 

changing some of our Medicaid eligibility rules so that it 

makes home equity conversion a more favorable and economically 

wise choice to make. There are lots of state act ions. In 

fact, we did ·a report on al 1 of the different activities in the 

states around the country, and I'll be happy to send you copies 

of that. There are more than 20 states that have commissions 

or task forces or study groups like your own, and you're right 
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in saying that we're all sort of at the beginning. Nobody has 

had lots of experience, but there's a lot of activity going on 
out _.there:-and:-that 's certainly the pre-cursor-____ if nothing- els-e 

-- 'of some-~ change. ; • ~"'! !- t '1 !·, ! I!!! '._" . • ' ' ,, ' 

It was very encouraging in my state to see the level 

of consumer awareness. If you don't mind some. extemporaneous 

remarks here, I'd like to give you a couple of tips from 

experience of the last year. We really spent a lot of effort 

in an aggressive press strategy, which got the issue into the 

newspaper and on television a lot -- not just because we wanted 

our picture in the paper, but because it really did go a long 

way to increasing consumer awareness. The older community got 

very interested in the issue; the younger community as well. 

Employers, financial institutions, banks began looking at the 

home equity conversion as an option. That's a real important 

strategy. Once you get that kind of momentum going, that just 

carries you forth. We really tried to encourage a lot of open 

hearings so that people became very invested in the process, 

including individuals who came and told heartrending stories of 

their own family experiences, -as well as we invited everybody 

from every state agency that was related to long-term care. So 

by the time our recommendations came out, people were very 

invested in the process, and interested in adopting and 

implementing the recommendations that we had. 
And just my last comment, that I think it's real 

important to get the private sector involved. We did a lot of 

fund raising from the private sector, and put together some 

subcommittees of people from insurance companies and HMOs and 
banks and the like, to get their input and to get them, again, 

invested in the process. And I thi.nk that was a real useful 

strategy. 

MS. SIMS: I have a question. I have a question about 

HMOs' response to this issue. Can you talk a little bit about 

that? 
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MS. SCHOFIELD: Sure. To date, the primary response 

· ~f HMOs has been through a national waivered project called the 

_:-; i-!..,:·)t ci. ~ s0cd:al;.~ HMO Project. There are four si te·s around the country. 

And what they provide is a capitated HMO type of-program, with 

case manager services. They don't have extensive institutional 

benefits, for the most part -- usual!}'.' four to six months of 

institutional care -- but they have focused on community-based 

and home-based services in an attempt to keep people out of 

institutions. The results of that demonstration are 

preliminary, at best. They've only been up and running for a 

couple of years, and they had difficulty marketing the program 

-- in part because it was a demonstration, and I think a lot of 

people didn't want to sign up for something that maybe wouldn't 

be there in three years. They've applied for an ext ens ion to 

do another three years so that they can really analyze the 

results, and I think that they will probably get that, if they 

haven't already. But they are finding that -- in preliminary 

terms -- that they are making some savings, and successfully 

diverting people from institutional to community-based care. 

We have a waivered program also in our state that also provides 

case, that also provides case management community-based 

services. That's a tremendous source of· savings. 

Other HMOs that I know of have not developed products 

to date, although the HMO Kaiser in our state, was very 

interested in being involved and gave an indication that in the 

long run they do want to develop that kind of service. 

MS. DIETRICH: I have a question. I noticed that you 

mentioned the awareness of your group of the shortage of 

physicians and nurses. · Did you also look at the issue of the 

supply of homemakers, and home health aides? 

MS. SCHOFIELD: Oh yes. The whole spectrum. 

MS. DIETRICH: Are there any plans or 

recommendations-- I noticed that you recommended that the 

State get involved in addressing the shortage. Is there any 

move in Connecticut to look at that? 
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MS. SCHOFIELD: We've talked about calling together 

people from the Labor Department and Higher Education in order 

to begin addressing the issue. It's actually just a tremendous 

",, " national problem. I have my own personal opinions on it, but I 

can't say that they are really Commission endorsed opinions. 

I'm not sure what actions the Governor is planning to take on 

tl:iat one, other than to maybe work with the university system 

in trying to find more funding. We do have a recently endowed 

Chair and a couple of positions at the University of 

Connecticut to expand programs and coordinate programs of 

education in the allied health fields, focusing on geriatric 

medicine. I think that will begin to make some inroads to the 

problem. 

But to be quite frank with you, a lot of it has to do 

just with plain old economics. If you pay people poorly, 

they're not going to want to take the job. And those jobs -­

particularly working in nursing homes, but even working in 

people's homes -- are very difficult jobs. It's emotionally 

and physically stressful. It takes a lot of endurance, and it 

takes a person with a certain kind of warmth and heart to do 

it. Those •people -- particularly women -- are finding that 

they now have other job opportunities that can pay them a 

little better. So until there's better pay equity, I'm not 

sure that that will ameliorate tremendously. But education 

will help. 
MS. DIETRICH: Thank you. 

MS. BASS: Madam Chair, a question. What 

response are you getting from the insurance industry? 

devising products? 

MS. SCHOFIELD: In the state? 

MS . BASS: Yes . 

kind of 

Are they 

MS. SCHOFIELD: 

insurance development in 

Insurance has still not 

Yes. We 

our state 

had some barriers to 

in that the Department of 

promulgated regulations to allow 
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insurance in the state. Surpr~singly, they've gone ahead and 
approved five policies 
unusual:':.;·· ;;;.(Li: •... , , "-_, ; ; -.. 

without regulations;._: which , . is a·_··b-it 
·, ~ • f·• -·, .>. :--- ' .. -. ··, ; - - · ... - - ,_ 

--~---~ ~ ... BASS: -I ~m not--sure. it··is:,unusual,· · • •· 
MS. SCHOFIELD: Well, in our state it is. They are in 

the process of promulgating regulations. Until a year ago when 
we had legislation pas~ed, long-term care insurance was not 
legal. So, even though we are the heart of the, you know, the 
capital of the insurance industry, there were no long-term care 
products being sold in the state. Several of the companies are 
now developing, or already have products available -- domestic 
companies, Aetna, Travelers-- Signa is developing policies. 
'!'he Hartford, I believe, has policies. So we have several 
companies that are domestic carriers that are interested. 

There's been a tremendous growth in insurance policies 
available. The Health and Human Services Task Force recently 
did a comprehensive survey of all of the policies out there, 
and they found in excess of 70 companies selling long-term care 
insurance, with. about 450,000 policies in force nationwide. 
When you compare that to studies that the GAO did just two or 
three years ago -- where they found maybe 15 companies and 
100,000 policies -- that's a significant amount of growth in a 
short period of time. It's still very small numbers. I mean, 
that represents less than two percent of the elderly nationwide. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Let me ask you a question. You 
mentioned that you've had some aggressive press, but are there 
any other specific steps that the state has taken to stimulate 
the development of private long-term care in.surance, while at 
the same type you ensure the quality of these productions? 

MS. SCHOFIELD: Steps that our state is taki~g? 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Yes, or that our's can take. 
MS. SCHOFIELD: Yes. Our Governor is calling together 

a round table of employers. I believe he'll probably use the 
existing Connecticut Business and Industry Association as one 
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entree to that. But he's calling together all of the major 

CEOs of major companies in the state to call their attention to 

the issue, and encourage them to begin looking at programs that 

employers can provide, both insurance programs as well as 

non-insurance programs. My company, for example, The 

Travelers, and also the Southern New England Telephone Company 

in Connecticut, have taken some steps to provide services to 

their employees who are providing care at home for family 

members. 

We did a survey at Travelers that showed that 

something like 30% of our employees over the age of 30 were 

engaged in some kind of family care giving efforts for an older 

family member, with a fairly substantial percentage of them 

providing care for anywhere from 10 to 40 hours · a week, in 

addition to their full-time jobs. It's such a strain on them 

that it really shows in their productivity, in the number of 

phone calls they' re making during work hours, in just their 

emotional stress and their own health -- days that they have to 

take off. 

So we've developed programs of information. We had a 

fair where we had all of the services in the community come and 

provide information on what they could do for families to 

help. We put together support groups so that employees could 

-- during work hours or after work hours -- meet in the company 

and exchange ideas and coping strategies. Southern New England 

Telephone Company has done similar things with developing care 

giving initiatives, and referral services. We've instituted 

"flex time" so people would have more flexibility of when they 

come in and could arrange their schedules around that. And 

_also a flexible spending account, which allows you to put 

pre-tax money into an account that you can later withdraw from 

on a tax-free basis for delivering care to your older dependent 

relatives. There are a lot of tax 1 imitations that require 

that the person really truly be a financially dependent 
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person. But there are lots of things employers can do, even 

short of just providing insurance. 

c ,,a:, , 0:::''•Our-··--state:,.is a·lso' -planning: to :provide -- long-term ca·re 

in~ur~ace to the-ir ·own st.ate employees- to-• set· a- pr-ecedent for 

other employers in the state. And again, lots of educational 

ef_forts will be going forth. The Governor's Action Plan 

outlines all of the steps that the Governor is immediately 

planning to take. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: How far should the state go in 

regulating these policies, would you say? 

MS. SCHOFIELD: I think that the regulation of 

insurance is a state responsibility. I would not look to the 

Federal government to do that. I would discourage that 

strongly. I think if you talk with your Insurance Commission 

people they probably would also prefer to keep regulation and 

consumer protection in their own purview, and not let that go 

to the Federal sector. 

I think that what you do have to keep in mind is that 

it's an emerging product, and you real~y don't want to stifle 

innovation in the long run. You certainly need to provide 

consumer protection, especially through stringent disclosure, 

preventing agent abuse, and elusiory benefits. You have to be 

very careful that you don't prevent future developments, 

because it really is a rapidly developing field, particularly 

as case management is going to get built into long-term care 

insurance policies eventually, and other kinds of benefits. 

You might have a life insurance policy that converts into a 

long-term care insurance policy, or a health policy that has a 

rider. I mean, there are so many permutations of what could 

develop that you really want to be a little careful about not 

clamping down and assuming that what's out there now is -what 

you're going to get in the future, and regulating just based on 

that, so that everybody looks like what's out there now. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. I can 

appreciate this. Our family has been in that situation ·for 

several years, so it's good to have all this input. Thank you 

very much. 

MS. SCHOFIELD: You're welcome. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Our next witness will be Dr. 

Steven Crystal, Director, Division of Aging, and Associate 

Research Professor with the Institute of Health, Health Care 

Policy and Aging Research, Rutgers University in New Brunswick. 

·» R. S T E V E N C R Y S T A L: Thank you. I'm not sure 

what the particular creative genius was behind the sequencing 

of witnesses, but I felt.as I listened to the presentations by 

Mark and Linda that this led in very well to some of the things 

that I wanted to say. I wanted to start taking at least one 

small step past the sort of descriptive basics about the 

long-term care problem and the need for private financing 

mechanisms, and so on, and try to. start talking a little more 

specifically about some of the public policy choices that will 

be facing a State like New Jersey, and some of the kinds of 

planning and analysis that will need to be done to deal -- not 

just in terms of taking initiatives that ought to be taken, but 

also in terms of responding to some .things that are going to 

happen whether the State takes action or not. I'm talking 

about the emergence of a whole variety of insurance based 

mechanisms which are starting to move very quickly, and will 

rapidly start creating demands on the regulatory processes, and 

raise a great many public policy issues for the State. 

The issues that we' re talking about revolve around 

meeting the long-term care crisis, and most recently, the 

widespread national interest in private financing 

particularly crucial in ·New Jersey because of the large and 

increasing elderly population. This is one of the oldest 

"States" in the nation. New Jersey has been a laboratory for a 

lot of ideas. Many creative things are being done in State 
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government, in the University sector. People like Ann Summers 

(phonetic spelling) -- who is here in the audience today -­

have been working on these issues for years. One of the 

important documents in this area is the recent article by Ann 

in the "New England Journal of Medicine," which is starting to 

bring the issues of private.financing of long-term care to the 

national health care audience. 

And at Rutgers, the concern . that a great deal of 

planning, research, and analysis needs to be done on the issues 

of aging -- and particularly around long-term care policy -­

has led to the recent creation of the Division of Aging in the 

Institute for Health Care Policy, where we're starting to get a 

group of people together who are looking systematically at 

these issues. We've gotten a great deal of support and 

encouragement from the Department of Community Affairs, which, 

as you probably know, has introduced legislation to create a 

New Jersey Policy Research Center on Aging based at Rutgers, 

which would have as one of its principal foci looking at these 

long-term care issues. 

So these are crucial issues. 

happening, and the things that I'll say 

Quite a bit has been 

and I' 11 try to say 

them quickly, so if there a.i;-e logical or factual steps that 

you'd like me to fill in, I'll be happy to -- but I'm going to 

try to go quickly through a rather complex argument, and 

through a series of really very intellectually challenging 

processes that we've gone through during the last six to eight 

months in a study for the State of California, which was done 

pursuant to a bill very similar to the study bill that this 

hearing is convened around. As Linda mentioned, there are 

about 20 such bi.lls, and many states have been looking at the 

public policy options for their state. 

During the last year, several major reports have been 

done. The one that I've been working on for the State of 

California is in process. It hasn't been completed yet, but 
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it's the result not only of consultant work by two or three of 

U$·,. but also an advisory. committee of people that was formed of 

peopler..::. ... f.rom,,,,·~me:. insur.ance ~indus_try~:::. p,eople from ,_, state· 

gove·r:nment ,_ .. -consumer ·representatives, -provider·· representatives.,. 

other constituencies -- which put in a great deal of work 

had six full day sessions. I think there was really a lot of 

growth and the emergence of some consensus in areas that I 

think would have surprised some of the participants at the 

beginning, about what some of the real issues were. And I 

think we found that the critical issues were a little bit 

different than had been visualized by the legislators, and 

little bit different than how the issue has been framed during 

the last year; because there·~ a way in which this issue about 

private financing of long-term care has been framed that you'll 

hear repeatedly. 

Perhaps it's most clearly expressed in two of the 

major recent reports on this issue that have been done; one by 

the Insurance Advisory Committee of the National Association of 

Insurance Commissioners, and the other by the Heal th Insurance 

Industry Association. As you'll undoubtedly notice, members of 

the industry have been among the leaders so far in sort of 

framing the public policy issues surrounding this. The 

consumer oriented organizations haven't yet been heard to the 

same extent, but I think as these issues emerge you will start 

seeing the major consumer issues better involved. 

The argument -- sort of what's become, let's say, the 

conventional wisdom during the last year or so, goes something 

like this: 

1) It's very crucial that we have the quick emergence 

of a fairly substantial private financing industry -- private 

f inanc·ing alternative. This is crucial because our public 

costs and programs like Medicaid are going out of control, 

because people don't have access to a payment source. And if 

we have a great deal of private insurance coverage on the acute 
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care side, shouldn't we have it in long-term care? It is in 

fact an importan~ public policy goal to find ways to stimulate 
1-·•·. t;h:is as .qu1ckly;:,as possible. 

l" .,,, "'' ·• , "'" •. ._,,.,,"2')': .. _~ha-: .long-term care insurance market has developed 

very slowly; ···one of the reasons for that has been the lack of 

experience, the fact that these products are experimental, the 

concern that costs may get out of control, and in particular, 

concern about what the impact of regulation may be. 

3) That we know very little about this area and, 

again, therefore, we're in a very experimental phase. 

4) That regulation of the kind that has been imposed 

in other areas of health insurance for the elderly 

classically, for example, in the Medigap area, that deals with 

such areas as loss ratios 

growth of this industry. 

would be a major obstacle to the 

And since it's a given that the high 

priority is the growth of the industry, that we need to be 

extremely cautious and tentative about any such regulatory 

steps. We need to try a great many models, and the ref ore, 

aga-in regulation. should be very limited, and therefore the 

emphasis should be on avoiding, and removing regulatory 

barriers. 

That, as I said, has been the conventional wisdom. 
And certainly, there are important, very real concerns in that, 

that need to be borne in mind as we address the public policy 

questions. We do want to avoid stifling innovation in this 

area. We do want to avoid stifling the market. 
However, there's another series of concerns that 

emerged really very sharply during the course of this 

California study, and to give you a very quick capsule of it-­

There's a statement right up near the beginning of this draft 

report which hasn't been released, which represents something 

of a consensus among people from very different backgrounds, on 

this task force. In fact, to my knowledge none of the members 
of the task force really objected to this ·wording, which kind 
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of surprised me, which goes something like, "There was a 

consensus· that emerged that consumer protection was perhaps the 
most impo.rtant~·issu~---·at~ ~this time." And that is. not the point 
of view trhat ·=-~his--.:advisory::.group·.:·started -with.. .It.' s ... not the 

emphasis that is central in the legislation, but we repeatedly 

found concerns about potential consumer problems in this area 

as we looked at how the market has evolved. Let me summarize 

very quick1¥" for you. It could obviously take much longer 

because there's a lot of detail to all this, but some of the 

things that we found that were not quite what we had expected 

to find: 

1) We found that the industry has grown quite a bit 

faster than was expected, even as recently as a year ago or so, 

when that study bill was passed; to the point where it's hardly 

appropriate to talk about this as a tiny tiny industry any 

more. Linda mentioned that the earlier estimates -- which were 

the estimates that the President's Task Force on Long-Term Care 
were working with. As recently as six or nine months ago if 

you asked any of the experts how many_ people -- and given that 

there are no hard data -- what's the estimate of the number of 

people actually covered nationally by long-term care insurance 

policies, the estimates were around 150,000. Current estimates 

coming out of the President's Task Force are more like 

450,000. There are new policies coming on the market every day. 

In California, during our first advisory group 
meeting, some of the most knowledgeable people -- and in fact, 
the representatives of the Insurance Department who were the 

prime sponsors of the study -- figured that there were 10 to 12 

policies on the market. We asked the Insurance Department to 

canvass all the insurers and ask for copies of the policies, 

which we analyzed. We found there were 46 policies, the 

majority of which had been issued only within the previous 

several months, and some of which were being marketed fairly 

actively. So notwithstanding some of the earlier notions, in 

27 



w· 

fact the industry does not seem to be stifled, but is moving 

along at quite a rapid clip. 

· · · _;,.. ·3:): The notion that the growth of private insurance 

.. cove.i;:-age ... ,will lead to major savings in the public programs, 

· such- as · Medicaid, which was one of the principal starting 

concerns, comes under considerable doubt as you look more 

carefully at this. Probably the most notable way that this has 

bee~ quantified recently, has been a study done by the 

Brookings Institution, and ICF Inc., in Washington on behalf of 

the President's Task Force the Federal Task Force on 

Long-Term Care Insurance, which has been operating in parallel 

to the Task Force on Catastrophic. They used a very 

sophisticated econometric model which has been used and tested 

in other areas for looking at projections of pension income and 

other issues of the economics of aging. They did a simulation 

experiment. There are a lot of fine points about the 

methodology and whether the methodology was right, but actually 

as I looked at it, some of their assumptions were actually 

fairly conservative, and the. results might even have been more 

striking if they used other assumptions. 

One of their major conclusions was the following: If 

you assume that there was a policy out there that all the 

elderly would buy if they could afford it -- afford it being 

defined as "that the cost would be less than 5% of their 

income, and that they had more than $10,000 in assets to 

protect," because if you have very little assets to protect, 

you have little benefit in buying the policy -- under those 

assumptions in their model, 26% of the elderly would have 

coverage by the year 2020. However, the impact on Medicaid 

costs was only 1% of what would otherwise have been spent. The 

reasons for that have to do with who incurs Medicaid costs. 

Many middle and higher income people spend down but when they 

spend down, the ultimate Medicaid contribution is still 

partial. So for that reason, and many other reasons, those are 

basically the things that go into that model. 
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I'm not going to get too buried in the model, but the 

point i:s · .that -even _if· you assume a considerable range of 

uncertainfy for·-·those · e-stirttates·/· it casts cons·iderab-le •doub-e .. oa­

til.e· . .-:no.tion: ·that0 .fostering ·the private market::·is· going-- .. to 

necessarily engender major savings in the public programs. And 

it certainly casts questions on the notion that by subsidizing 

that market, the cost of the subsi_dy would be recovered, or 

recovered manyfold as sometimes has been argued, or even that 

very much of it would be recovered. 

We also found increasingly that this is not an easy 

area for the private market -- for the conventional private 

insurance companies operating more or less as they have 

operated in the past, with indemnity kind of models -- to 

insure. The reasons did not seem to us to have as much to do 

with regulatory barriers as with other factors, such as the 

problem of better selection in a typical individually marketed 

insurance kind of setup. 

More and more as you look at the long-term care 

insurance area, the models that seem to make a great deal of 

programmatic sense are managed-care models. They use 

disability-base screening. They're involved with a flexible 

provision of the kind of service that the person needs. They 

include a variety of home care kinds of alternatives, as well 

as a nursing home benefit. That starts to become a product 

that is difficult -- certainly an untraditional kind of way for 

the private industry to operate. There are many examples of 

the industry wrestling with this problem, arid I think some of 

the most constructive and promising ones of those, involve 

partnerships between the insurance industry and other kinds of 

heal th care providers -- HMOs, and the like. For example, 

there's ·a very innovative kind of program that's been developed 

by Group Health of Puget Sound in partnership with the 

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, but because there's the 

health care delivery organization involved in it and not just a 
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financing mechanism, they are unable to have some of the 

flexibility, the more cost-effective provision of benefits as 

opposed to:·. what~ s been happening. 
,1,,Wh-at ._._.we saw happening in California in · the 

conventional -insurance market was, basically nursing home 

insurance, and nursing home insurance that models itself in 

many ways -- which is ironic -- on the Medicare model. Ironic, 

because the Medicare model was designed to not provide coverage 

for long-term care, but in a sense to separate that which is 

short-term and convalescent, and related to an episode of acute 

illness, from that which is truly long-term care. And yet, 

most of the policies are using screens that are essentially 

borrowed from Medicare practice. There's a three-day 

hospitalization prior to the utilization of benefits. 

For the same condition for which the need for 

long-term care exists, there is a need for skilled nursing 

care. Now, as you get into this, that's a term you have to 

look at very carefully, because it's a term of art. Skilled 

nursing care, for example, is not the same as care -in a skilled 

nursing facility. It may have little to do with the extensivity 

of the care, the degree of impairment, and the activities of 

daily living for which the person needs assistance; but it's a 

term of art. It's a term that's been used in Medicare practice 
as a way of cost containment, and it doesn't necessarily have 

much to do with the need for long-term care. One can be very 
extensively impaired, very dependent in basic activities of 
daily living, and not meet that term of art. It's particularly 

problematic since there's an issue as to how it's interpreted 

by individual companies, and how they interpret it in the first 

few years -- during which time they are marketing a lot of 

policies -- may be different and important in subtle ways from 

how they find themselves interpreting it 10 to 15 years from 

now when those policies start to mature, and people want to 

claim benefits from them. 
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The consumer knowing exactly under what conditions 

they would be able to draw· benefits,- and under what conditions 

theyswouid ·,riot be ,,able:, -to ·"'draw benefits under these policies, 

is one of::.the major p:E:oblem: areas:;:: Now- those : kinds ·-of ~screens 

are justified by the industry as ways in which it becomes 

financially feasible for them to offer these policies and not 

be afraid of being wiped out by very high rates of 

utilization. But they accomplish that by -- in the potential, 

and very likely in the reality screening out many 

individuals who will have a bona fide long-term care need. So 

there are those kinds of problems. They've been difficult so 

far to handle in the private market. What we saw happening in 

the private market does not resemble what one would design if 

one would design rational long-term care policy that avoids 

some of the problems of the past the 

over-institutionalization -- that provides services flexibly to 

people in accordance with their real needs. 

Now there are many kinds of policy implications that 

c_ome from that, and ti:ying to be brief, I' 11 just try to 

summarize them more in the form of a way of looking at issues 

and a set of things to be concerned about, more than the 

current recommendations -- which are complex and have to be 

based on very careful analysis -- but just to quickly summarize 

what this kind of point of view suggests: The concern for 

stimulating the private market is not the only concern, and 

needs to be balanced against concerns of consumer protection; 

that private financing is not a panacea for the long-term care 

system, or for the problems of finding public financing that's 

needed for long-term care; that a great deal of study and 

analysis is needed in this area. The developments are 

out-stripping the public agencies that are responsible for 

setting policy and for regulating. We saw that clearly with 

one of the most sophisticated insurance companies in the 

country. They were quite overwhelmed by these developments. 
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Insurance regulation is a fairly conservative 

business. Most of the products that they deal with have been 

~round,,ec for a long time, and they divide things into 

,.,.,.,,,,. "Cate<ge1:·ies. They say if something is a "widget" it's regulated 

as · a "-w-idget." If it's a "framus" you regulate it as a 

"framus." When they are presented with 

products, they don't know what to make of 

these kinds of 

it. They' re not 

traditional products. They have some of the characteristics of 

health insurance, some of the characteristics of disability 

insurance, of life insurance. They involve a much longer time 

frame -- in terms of the tail, the term of the coverage. 

They' re going to be paying much further downstream than is 

typically true of health insurance -- which makes it very 

difficult. Some of the concepts in terms of loss ratios, for 

example, that they deal with are difficult to adapt to this. 

So there is a tremendous regulatory challenge. 

And we would argue that it is not appropriate to say, 

"Well, we' 11 worry about that in five or ten years, and we' 11 

have laissez fa ire for the time being, and see what emerges," 

because there could be a great deal of damage to consumers. We 

found policies -- by reading these policies carefully -- that 

once we had looked at them carefully, studied their provisions 

and looked at how provisions in the policies interacted -­

policies that had recently been approved by the insurance 

department -- that when we brought these to the attention of 

higher level policy make.rs in the insurance department and 

looked carefully at how the policy worked, they said, "Well 

this is a policy designed never to pay off anybody." These are 

the kinds of issues that have to be addressed, and will start 

catching up with consumers, whether the State takes action or 

not. 

In terms of a general approach I would argue that just 

as the development of the health maintenance organization as an 

alternative way of financing health care did not just happen, 

32 



but required _a great deal of institution building -- there were 

grants and loans that were important in the early emergence_ of 
HMOs,;,,.:..- :that ~ pos;itive: • a£f irmative; kind.~ of~ ··appro:ach~·by -the 

St-ate:- ·to- --encourage_ ~xperimentation with e-apitated 0• payment: :.fo-r 

long-term care in areas like State employee benefits, is 

important. Developing data bases is important. Conducting 

ongoii:ig analyses is important. Finding appropriate and 

sophisticated ways to regulate these products that avoid 

consumer misrepresentation and consumer disappointment, is 

important. Consumer education, obviously is important. 

Incidentally, California has a program called the "High-Cap 

Program," which is a consumer education program which 

initially evolved with the Medigap, the supplemental Medicare 

· area, and now has be~ome very involved in this. They are 

reporting a tremendous amount of consumer concerns, consumer 

confusion. And the existence of programs like that arid like 

New Jersey's program, are goi11:g to be very important as these 

kinds of products emerge. 

So, overall I would say that this is a complex area, 

because long-term care is complex, 

are complex. It's going to be very 

get out in front of it, and not just 

proactive, to think about the kinds 

and insurance regulations 

important for the State to 

to be reactive, but to be 

of models -- managed care 

models that are appropriate, to encourage them to try to avoid 

some of the sins of the past the overemphasis on 

institutional care for example -- and not to let some of the 

other long-term care agendas be set aside in the quest to 

privatize long-term care; that some of the initiatives in 

terms, particularly, of the increased funding for home care for 

individuals both the Medicaid eligible individuals, and 

those individuals who in most states are in particular need, 

who have too much income for the poverty level programs like 

Medicaid, and too little to pay for the home care that they 

need. All these agendas need to continue, and not be simply 
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distracted by the notion of the panacea of private financing of 

long-term care. 

So I think with that I will stop, -and answer any 

questions that you have. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: 

response) I have one question. 

Anyone have any questions? (no 

What provisions would a model 

long-term care insurance policy have, with respect to benefits 

provided and coverage limitations? 

DR. CRYSTAL: I would argue that a model policy is not 

just a policy, it's a program. It's a delivery structure that 

has the capability to meet a person's need -- whatever that 

need is. Now, that entails some form of case management, 

entails some form of assessment, entails using screens that are 

valid that really relate to an individual's need for 

long-term care, as opposed to the three-day hospitalization, 

the skilled nursing requirement, The models that I've seen 

that seem to make programatic sense are, for example, the four. 

social health care maintenance organizations -- the so called, 

"SHMOs." A program somewhat . similar to that called MSSP in 

California, the Group Health of Puget Sound kind of appoach. 

All of these are programs which have an element of case 

management, which have the capability to bring in the 

particular service that the individual needs whether that be 

placement in a nursing home, whether it be home care, and to 

modify those service plans as individuals' needs change over 

time--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. No questions? (no 

response) Thank you very much. Our next witness wi 11 be Dr . 

William P. Brandon. Dr. Brandon, Associate Professor of 

Political Science, Seton Hall University in South Orange. 

Could we have some order here? Yes, Dr. Brandon? 

D R. W I L L I A M P. B R A N D O N: I want to 

congratulate you, Madam Chairwoman, the members of this Task 

Force, the Assembly, and the State of New Jersey, for 

undertaking this important and timely investigation. 
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The subject is important because justice dictates that 
we consider the problems of the current cohort of elderly 
citizens, ;}and: prudence-11requires us ·,to, ,prepare our soc:iety and 

government ··for the · -i-ne-reased demands that will be generated in 
about 25 years· when the baby boomers begin to turn 60 or 65. 
The study is timely because State action must be developed in 
conjunction with developments at the Federal level, such as the 
consideration of expanding Medicare to include social insurance 
against catastrophic illness. Reexamination of domestic social 
policy is also opportune in light of the relative health of the 
economy after the stagflation of the 1970s. 

I want to begin today by explaining how my colleagues 
at- Seton Hall's newly inaugurated Center for Public Service and 
I can contribute to your deliberations. The institutional 
culture at Seton Hall and the personal convictions of our 
faculty, lead us to emphasize the value questions involved in 
public policy issues. Of course, any useful consideration of 
values must be based on accurate empirical knowledge. 

Along with gra,duate teaching in the Master's Program 
in Public Administration, we at the Center for Public Service 
are charged with the twin duties of community service and 
academic research. 

An example of the compatibility of our service and 
research is the conference we held on paying for uncompensated 
care under New Jersey's DRG system for reimbursing hospitals. 
The papers and discussions at this conference were published as 
a symposium entitled "The All-Payers DRG System: Has New 
Jersey Found an· Efficient and Ethical Way to Provide Indigent 
Care?" It was published in the prestigious "Bulletin of the 
New York Academy of Medicine. " Subsequently, a generous grant 
from the Fund for New Jersey permitted us to distribute copies 
of the "Bulletin" to decision makers and opinion leaders in New 
Jersey and throughout the nation. Legislation embodying some 
of the principal recommendations of the conference is now being 
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implemented and researchers are following some of the leads 

suggested at the co!].fe.rence. 
-· ,_ · · ·-·--- Our";in~erest-•· in..:. .. issues ,rela..ting_;~to·, the f'.inanc~ and 

del-i-very:'.0f -=-h:eal:th~ car-.e_ -_i-n--New .. Jers.ey .. has .become even -greater 

since last May, when Seton Hall became a Graduate School of 

Medical Education. We at the Center for Public Service expect 

to play an important role in the State's second graduate 

medical school. 

Since you' re at the beginning of your deliberations 

and have asked that today's hearings consider national 

long-term care policy, I want to devote my statement to general 

principles or options of the broadest sort. Such 

fundamental consideration is often neglected, because policy 

analysts are busy grappling with the_ important details of 

particular policies, or this consideration is foreclosed 

because the policy community takes some unarticulated 

assumptions for .granted. Thus, I'm going to _try to draw us 

back out to take a broader look at these issues. This is in a 

position that's consonant with this sort of value_ orientation 

that I described a few seconds ago. 

I want to start off by talking about the context for 

this consideration, that is security for retired workers. We 

may be at an important turning point in developing heal th and 

social policy for the U.S. population. The period from 1935 

through the Nixon administration essentially accomplished the 

task of securing income maintenance and basic heal th coverage 

for retired workers. It also saw the protection of workers 

against periods of unemployment, sickness, and disability. The 

period began with the inauguration of Social Security and ended 

with the large increases in the value of the benefit, indexing 

the increased benefit to rises in consumer prices, and 

legislation to ensure the payment of promised private pension 

benefits through the ERISA legislation. Participation in the 

World War and the Korean War which interrupted the 
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development of these economic rights will also give millions 

of ex-servicemen additional retirement benefits, just as many 

- 0£._:them enjoyed significant educational support when they were 

•·!' .... :yomiger, and tax reductions as homeowners in their middle years. 

Now that the basic needs of most elderly are met, new 

problems have become apparent. We've seen, obviously, perhaps 

the most evident is the rising concern about the cost of 

long-term care. But perhaps one of the early marks of this 

change was the crisis that led to the Greenspan Commission's 

examination of Social Security finances, and the historic 

compromise of 1983. The crisis in the Social Security Trust 

Fund was partly due to the maturing of Social Security as a 

system, partly it was due to particularly bad economic luck in 

the ~970s, and partly it was due to the aging of America. The 

favorable resolution of this crisis secured retirement benefits 

at least until the baby boom begins to draw heavily on the 

Social Security Trust Funds. Although some adjustment will 

almost certainly be needed in the next century, the imbalances 

are unlikely to be so great as to be unfixable. The state of 

the Medicare Trust Fund, however, is another story. It is 

important for attention to be paid to the underlying imbalance 

in the bas~c hospital and physicians' benefits promised under 

Medicare, before these deficits become a crisis. 

Okay. This is the context of 40 years of progress in 

assuring adult workers of relative economic security, in both 

employment and retirement. It helps to explain why the issues 

of catastrophic illness and long-term health care have risen to 

the top of the national social policy agenda. It is natural to 

wish to complete the basic security system for the elderly ·by 

providing Medicare · coverage for the entire expenses of 

catastrophic illness -- those which require hospitalization -­

and by developing some coverage for institutional long-term 

care. The problems of a relatively small number of Medicare 

beneficiaries -- those who experience catastrophic expenses in 
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a year has led Secretary Bowen to propose his plan to cover 
catastroph-ic.·.-illness. ·under. Medicare. · Yet ~-, as you~ve heard 
before·;·· toqay---..:.-~ there· ,·can be' no real: catastrophic,·,. prbtect:i:.oR, 

wi:tho:ut, covering the::catastrophe·: of ... &xtended: .stays, .. in. nur.sing 

homes. 
It is typical of the pluralist, interest-group 

politics practiced in the U.S. to focus on these genuine gaps 

in a system that, if not complete, are at least largely in 

place in its general outlines, and to_try to do something about 

these very real shortcomings. Our political system is often 

said to eschew comprehensive rational efforts to totally solve 

new problems. Instead, change generally comes "incrementally," 

in little _steps that build on the last change. The slow 

accretion of social insurance programs benefiting the elderly 

is a good example of this incrementalism. Whereas other 

industrial countries began their government health insurance 

programs with workers, private h~alth insurance obtained as a 

fringe benefit through employment has supplied U.S. workers 

with basic health benefits. As a consequence, social insurance 
for heal th was added to measur_es already in place to provide 

retirement income. We consequently have a fairly complete, if 

slightly jerry-built, social insurance structure to protect 

retirees and the disabled. Workers are fairly well-protected 
as long as they maintain employment. Large numbers of people 

falling outside these groups, however, have no meaningful 

coverage for basic health care, or for long-term care. 
Thus, reflection on the great progress that has been 

made in providing security to retired citizens leads to the 

question whether social and governmental energies ought to be 

devoted to· adding another crucial increment to reduce the 

remaining gaps, or whether the needs of other groups or age 

cohorts in society ought to receive attention. Young families 

faced with the problem of day-care and housing, and the 

striking evidence of the need for programs to enhance the 

health of infants and pregnant women, are frequently mentioned. 
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Even in forums where questions of relative need are 

foreclosed, an appreciation of advances in the security and 

·fi:qanciaJ= · status-" of the elderly is important for policy 
,. •••• ,<v.J making .• ,,The, ,f--a,crt_• that the economic status of the elderly as a 

class has improved radically since the passage of Medicare in 

the 1960s, lies behind the move to force more affluent 

beneficiaries to bear some of the costs of programs for all of 

the elderly. Taxation of Social Security benefits began with 

the historic Social Security compromise of 1983. Congressman 

Stark's original proposal for catastrophic insurance in the 

current session of Congress would have taxed affluent 

beneficiaries to ·pay for a generous benefit that all 

beneficiaries of Social Security or Medicare would have been 

entitled to. The bill actually was passed by the House in 

July, and involved a slightly disguised form of income related 

beneficiary cost sharing. 

Okay. So much 

information in context. I 

for the, sort of,. background 

want to talk about three broad 

options -- general directions that can be followed in providing 

long-term care. The first of these is, of course, to maintain 

the current system, perhaps ameliorating it somewhat with 

government support for home care and other programs that will 

stabilize the number of elderly who need expensive 

institutional long-term care. The second option is to 

establish a compulsory program of social health insurance that 
will cover all long-term care, or at least long stay 

institutional care. The third possibility -- that you've heard 

discussed in some detail this morning -- is to foster the 

development of private insurance for long-term care, including 

catastrophic long-stay institutional care. 

Option one -- that is to maintain the current system 

-- really involves-- First, we need to understand the current 

system, and you've heard it explained today. The current 

system can be understood as being focused around Medicaid, 
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which is a perverse, public, catastrophic insurance for 
long-term- - in,sstitutiona1_ · care-. Medicaid.~," functions as· . an 
fnsurarice program with-'-•·a· giganti9 deduct·i-ble··' ..... - :-a-11 =af ·' .·a· 

person's 1~ife~ ::savings. ~ :· once-· .. one · reaches that;::· then'.·"one :·has­

this safety net, which is a kind of a funny, sort of strange, 

social insurance. Although this system does provide for those 

needing institutional care, ultimately it has very serious 

drawbacks. 

The first of these drawbacks is that often the focus 

of the State and of government on institutional care -- because 

that's what's absorbing the dollars -- means that the state of 

home care programs is relatively underdeveloped. That means 

there's no alternative to institutional care, and costs rise. 

An~ther drawback is that the development of Medicaid as a 

catastrophic insurance for people needing institutional 

long-term care has really distorted the original purpose of 

Medicaid, which was designed to provide benefits for the 

categorically indigent who are on welfare programs, the largest 

group of whom are the women and children receiving Aid to 

Families with Dependent Children. 

Another drawback of the current system is -- that we 

haven't really talked about today -- is that it has tended 

across the country to produce a two-class system of long-term 
care. To a much greater extent than acute hospital care, 
nursing homes separate themselves into those who are 

essentially looking for people who at least are not on Medicaid 
when they are admitted to the nursing home, and some of them 

even try to make selections on the basis of those who won't 

ultimately need Medicaid; and the other kinds of homes which 

accept Medicaid patients. It's often been remarked that in 

many of these homes there's a difference in the quality of care 

in what goes on. New Jersey in its hospital care has avoided 

this two class care by ensuring that those who don't have 

compensation for hospital care, that the hospitals the 
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institutions -- are reimbursed fully for their care under the 
State rate setting system of DRGs. My understanding is that in 
the;,_[long~te;;r;m_,,_JJaire field,--, similarly- the ,State has taken action 
-t;o- t-ry- 't-o st6p th±s::two class 0 system, o.i, -0are, -but :i::.eally ... .a.cro.s.s: 
the country it ' s quite evident.· -

But finally, and perhaps the most significant drawback 
of using Medicaid as a system of supporting long-term care, is 
its effects on the individuals. The mental distress calls for 
someone who has essentially lived an independent life, been 
prudent, been self-sufficient, to in their final years be 
pauperized. That kind of mental distress simply cannot be 
calculated. Physical effects of this pauperization on the 
spouse who remains in the community are significant and 
devastating. So, from a concern simply for the individuals, 
the current system does not work. And it seems very strange 
that we have a kind of pauperization for a soci~l net by 
exactly those people who, in other aspects of their lives, are 
the largest beneficiaries of social health insurance. 

Okay. An alternative to the·current system is social 
insurance. Social insurance involves a non voluntary pooling 
of large groups based on a pay as you go philosophy. It could 
remedy the current situation because a relatively small number 
of elderly, at any one particular time, are faced with the 
expense of long-term care. That number can be predicted, and 
one can develop payments from the others to pay for it. So 
long-term care is something which can be covered under an 
insurance mechanism. 

Perhaps the chief reasons social insurance is not 
considered in the current ideological climate is because social 
insurance . programs or almost all of them are 
redistributive; meaning taking from some to support others. As 
sort of an aside perhaps, as a citizen of New Jersey, I might 
remark that in our regulation of insurance -- for example 
automobile insurance the State doesn't hesitate to be 
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redistributive, for example in taking some kinds of surtaxes on 
people buying auto liability insurance to support the premiums 

~~paid by bad drivers, and that at least social insurance 
.... mechanisms, when they are straightforwardly addressed, having 

the advantage of doing it openly, rather than in this disguised 
form. But one needs to recognize reality, that currently 
social insurance ~snot in favor, and this I'm sure will weigh 
heavily in the considerations of this Task Force. 

There are several advantages, however, of a social 
insurance mechanism, and that is that everyone is treated 
equally. Because everyone is treated equally -- has an equal 
right to benefits -- there's no stigma attached to using those 
benefits, whereas we know that Medicaid still carries for many 
people a kind of stigma. 

Another consideration that perhaps isn't so well-known 
is that, contrary to popular opinion, soci~l insurance can be 
cost-effective. For one thing, there are no large reserves 
needed since it's possible with a government guarantee to 
operate on a pay as you go basis. Moreover, many of the 
expenses of private insurance -- marketing, profits, much of 
the overhead costs -- really aren't necessary with a social 
insurance program. 

A third consideration is that the concentration of 
buying power into the hands of one body -- for example, the 
government -- gives it great power to control costs. We've 
seet:1 that outside of New Jersey with Medicare, which is now 
making rapid strides in controlling costs because they have 
buying power and can force providers to control costs. 

However, as I indicated previously, the disadvantages 
of social insurance are probably decisive, especially for a 
State body. In the first place, any social insurance mechanism 
involves turning private dollars into public dollars, and in 
this economic climate no one wants to see government budgets 
appear to become larger. 
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The second problem is that any social insurance 

mechanism is liable to increase demand,. _ what insurance 

c:.ompani~s ,like to, call a--='''mora1 hazard,'.' that is, if some.thing 

is insured against;' there·· will: be ·more· demand £or:· that:•, ser,v:ice,, 

and that of course runs up costs. 

The third consideration is that social insurance 

mechanisms probably have to be devel<?ped on a national or 

Federal basis. It's really hard to see in these days how 

states could develop their own, pretty comprehensive, social 

insurance mechanism; even for something like long-term care. 

The third option then is private long-term care 

insurance, which has been explained in some detail by previous 

speakers. What I think hasn't been addressed here is the 

straightforward question of, why hasn't private long-term care 

insurance developed previously? One of the chief problems with 

. long-term care insurance is that the premiums are probably 

prohibitive. If a policy is purchased when the individual is 

really faced with a significant likelihood of needing long-term 

care. The costs of long-term .care are so astronomical that . 

unless you get relatively young and health people buying 

policies that will then go into some kind of trust fund to save 

for them, the costs become so expensive that they are unlikely 

to be appealing to people faced with this choice. 

Another problem, of course, in keeping the cost is -­

or the assumption in saying they are expensive, is that you're 

going to have adequate policies that will actually deal with 

the problem. So the cost of purchasing long-term care 

insurance really has to be pushed back to people to 

middle-aged workers who do have more disposable· income. Yet 

it's very hard to sell insurance for potential 

institutionalization that may or may not come about many years 

after purchase. 
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Perhaps part of the problem is this lack of 
information ___ even. by many retirees -- that Medicare does no.t 

c:a.v.~r. long-te:cm :care.:.:_~ Yet,;;,· it:,_;__seems, i·to me· ·:that,. if•. :~government 

and, i,nsurance··companies·: do . .- succ·eed-- -in cb£recting· the ·fai-lure :of 

in£'ormation so that the general population becomes aware that 

long-term care is not covered, the typical American male -- who 

is the one making the decision on insurance matters -- seems to 

me unlikely to subscribe to long-term care insurance until 

there's a real chance that he or someone in his family may face 

this possibility. 

Another problem with our experience with depending on 

private insurance to supply long-term care needs, is that we 

have learned with health insurance to essentially function in 

this realm on a pay as you go basis. We have annual policies 

that have to break even. We don't have the habit of dealing 

with large trust funds which are built up over the years. We 

do have this experience with life insurance. Moreover, health 

insurance has taught us to expect, and to trust, service 

benefits rather than indemnity. This leaves a problem· for the 

insurance companies, which have to engineer benefits far into· 

the future so that these benefits will be adequate. They also 

have to predict costs in the future, and that is a really 

sticky problem -- a technical problem with insurance, but a 
broader problem for all of us because we don't know what is 
going to happen to inflation and to savings. So there are some 
real problems almost commonsensical problems with 
long-term care insurance that I think helps to explain why I 

think it hasn't developed, and probably which government really 

can't do that much about. 

There is, however, a positive side, and that is the 

possibility of a partnership between private insurance 

companies and government . Government could easily do more to 

foster home care programs, and these would cut the costs of the 

really expensive part of long-term care, that is institutional 
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care. On the other hand, enhanced private insurance held by a 
large-- segment of the population would buffer Medicaid costs 

; :- ,,:j-,, thatrdJoYernment bears, because there would be private insurance 
... mec:hani.sms absorbing long-term care costs. - ·- - ~ -- -

There's another aspect that might suggest or explain 
the interest and perhaps the growth -- even smal 1 as it has 
been -- in long-term care insurance. One of the aspects -- it 
hasn't been commented on very much on all of the new 
catastrophic proposals that the last Congress considered is 
that they are going to squeeze the supplemental or Medigap 
insurance policies. As Medicare becomes more comprehensive fo.r 
hospital coverage, it may not appear worthwhile for individuals 
to purchase additional supplemental p.olicies. This loss of the 
Medigap market may motivate insurance companies to develop new 
business in the long-term care process. So one of the reasons 
we may be seei~g an explosion of long-term care policies is 
because insurance companies need to find new markets in this 
sort of general area to replace lost Medigap coverage. 

Well, how does one evaluate the growth_ of -- or the 
value in development of private health insurance for long-term 
care? It clearly is a partial solution. Many people who don't 
have the means, aren't going to be able to afford the policies 
even when they're working, and before they face the risk of 
being subject to long-term care. But a partial solution is no 
doubt better than no solution at all. However, we need to be 
careful of three dangers that may accompany any growth in 
long-term care insurance in the private market. 

First of course is the problem of moral hazard. That 
is the insurance effect in which more people will seek care if 
they' re covered. A second is a growth in the segregation of 
patients by payment class, that's creating a worse problem with 
this two class system of care. And the third possibility is 
that if we have private long-term care health insurance which 
covers care delivered in the homes, it would be very sad to see 
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the care that's now given on a voluntary non-monetized -- that 
is a not paid for basis by family, friends, and neighbors-- It 
would _ be terxible.: to =.see ... that .-in ,--a. away;-; become,:: some:thing­

exch.a.tiged, -fa;r,-.. whioh• we,.,now,.p·ay money .. ,.: Not only will it raise 

costs, but··-it·- would probably reduce· the· quality of that care. 

Other countries which depend less on payment and more on, sort 

of, philanthropy and volunteerism than the United States has, 

reports that the care is not only cheaper, but the quality and 

the spirit in which that care is offered is much higher. There 

is also a history in the American health care system of the 

replacement of philanthropy and volunteerism with reimbursement 

of various kinds of charges, with effects on the heal th care 

system. 

Regulation can at least take care or do something 

to inhibit -- the growth of the two class health care system, 

and it.seems clear that we're going to need regulation to make 

sure that long-term care policies actually are adequate to the 

· problem, and that they actually do pay off in claims that 

they've been collecting fqr over the . years. Hence we must 

really abandon the policy of buying for one year and then 

dropping it. Any long-term care policy must be continued over 

a long number of years. 

Okay. I want to stop at this point and say I'd be 

happy to answer any questions, and in closing thank you for 
inviting me to come up and talk to you, and to wish you well in 

your important endeavors. It's a challenging task that you 
face. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. Any questions? 

MS. BASS: I just have one question. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Do you? Go ahead. 

MS. BASS: Something you al 1 uded to -- and something 

which we in the Department of Human Services are concerned 

about -- should there be a significant growth in coverage for 

long-term care, whether that might not create a squeeze on 

46 



Medicaid patients, who already face some difficulty in finding 

placement into nursing homes? Can you address that a 1 i ttle 

bit? 

DR. BRANDON: I think it's a serious problem -- if I 

understand your question right. In other words, that there 

would be a diversion from current Medicaid patients to support 

long-term care programs in the home, and the ref ore that the 

nursing home industry would in a way stagnate and there 

wouldn't be more beds; or that Medicaid would be paying both at 

home and in the nursing homes. 

MS. BASS: I think my concern is more that -- as you 

suggested -- there might be even increased demand for nursing 

home beds among people who now have long-term care coverage, 

over and above what already exists, . a~d that would decrease 

what willingness exists today among nursing home operators to 

accept Medicaid patients, and that we ~ight have even more 

difficulty finding placements for people who really have the 

fewest options of anyone. 

DR. . BRANDON: Yes . I think that's a great 

possibility, unless of course Medicaid begins to pay more 

generously. If it's attractive to have a Medicaid patient, 

then I think that reluctance is going to f a)l very rapidly. 

From the point of view of social justice, that's clearly what 

the State of New Jersey has done with its hospital payment 

system; and that is to assure essentially the same payment no 
matter what one's payment source is. I would hope that in the 

long run we could move towards a long-term care program that 

would aim at an adequate rate of reimbursement for nursing 

homes just as we have for hospitals. Then of course you have 

the cost problems, and a different kind of squeeze, and that is 

that State and the Federal money that goes into Medicaid would 

more and more be siphoned into care for long-term care 

either in nursing homes or in home programs -- and that we 

wouldn't be providing that care which was the original purpose 
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of Medicaid, essentially for children and others on categorical 

welfare programs. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. I just 

want ... to ask you one question. Of the three options:·: you 

mentioned, what do you feel the prospects will be for the next 

five years? 

DR. BRANDON: I think there's virtually no chance that 

we'll see social insurance for long-term care. In a way it's a 

non-starter, but I think it's important to continue talking 

about it because there's a history of finding the inadequacies 

of private insurance, finding large scale uncompensated care -­

for example in the hospital system -- so that in the long-term, 

that may be the option that will emerge, b_:ut certainly not 

within the next five years. 

The growth of private long-term care insurance: 

Everyone seems to talk about it ~s just around the corner. I'm 

a little skeptical. I think there's some real problems, both 

in informing people about the lack of current coverage, but 

beyond that of motivating individuals -- perhaps their unions, 

certainly their employers· -- to provide this as a fringe 

benefit, or for people to pay out-of-pocket ·for individual 

policies. This climate is not conducive to increased fringe · 

benefits, given the problems of competitiveness of American 
industry. Moreover, employers are particularly loath to expand 

benefits for retirees. In fact, there have been attempts to 

cut it back. It's retirees who are going to need the long-term 

care benefits. So that it seems to me it's unlikely you' re 

going to have those kinds of institutional supports for the 

private health insurance that's discussed as the answer. So 

frankly, yes, I think some people will have this kind of 

protection. Probably •it's more likely to come about through 

the retirement communities that provide nursing homes, with 

sort of large up-front deductibles -- buy-in provision, that 

kind of arrangement, and perhaps social HMOs, which are an 

interesting idea, but I think as yet unproved. 
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Sadly, that leaves the first option -- which is a 

continuation of the current program -- maybe with more efforts 

at home care so that people aren't forced into nursing homes, 

· and with a commensurate decrease on pressure of Medicaid 

budgets. I wish there was something more positive. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. 

DR. BRANDON: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: We're running a little late. 

We're going to try to conclude by 1:00, and perhaps we'll call 

witnesses and not ask any questions, and take testimony. That 

might be helpful. 

The next person to come up would be Kim Bellard, or 

James O' Conner. (Committee Aide informs the Chairwoman that 

Mr. O'Conner will be testifying) Mr. O'Conner, from the 

Prudential Insurance Company. 

J A M E S O ' C O N N E R: Madam Chairman, and Task Force 

members, thank you for inviting us to speak at this initial 

hearing of the Task Force on Catastrophic and Long-Term Heal th 

Care. My name is Jim O' Conner. I'm a Vice President and 

Assistant Actuary of the Prudential, located in our Group 

Insurance Complex in Roseland, New Jersey. I am a member of 

our Long-T·erm Care Task Force, and in the spirit of keeping 

things on schedule -- or back to schedule -- I will be as brief 

as I can; describing Prudential's activities in the area of 

long-term care. 

Two years ago, in conjunction with the American 

Association of Retired Persons, we conducted a test marketing 

of a long-term care plan. The main benefits of the plan were a 

$40 per day benefit for care in a nursing home, a $25 per day 

benefit for home health visits of nurses and therapists, and 

$20 per visit for home heal th aides. There was a three-day 

hospitalization requirement, and a 20-day deductible. Nursing 

home benefits were payable for a maximum of three years, and 

home health benefits for a maximum of 365 visits. We mailed 
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enrollment packages to 215,000 households in six states, 

including New -Jersey, and approximately. 1200 .members of the 
ass0ci-ation··:becamenins~e4_•::-: ::: i_._;:~.:-:·.; .··:·-:-·_· -- ..... - _::_ __ ~>~·:: 

····:.In --the-:fa-1~1 -of-: 1986,'..·we· conductedr'another test ,-maitli,ng. 

to 300, ooo households in eight states, and allowed members in 

those states to call us requesting an 

eliminated . the three-day hospital 

lengthened the deductible to 90 days; 

8000 insureds as a result of that test. 

enrollment package. We 

stay requirement, but 

We added approximately 

This year we prepared and executed a national campaign 

to solicit AARP members for long-term care insurance plan. The 

offering was advertised in AARP publications, with a toll free 

number for inquiries and orders of enrollment material. The 

plan is much the same as that from the 1986 test, with a daily 

nursing home benefit maximum raised to $50 per day. As today 

is the deadline for inquiry, I don't have any final numbers in 

terms of enrollments. 

than anticipated. 

But the response has been even better 

We are currently planning a next generati.on of these 

insurance products, based on the feedback from our 1985 and 

1986 tests, and ultimately information we gain from our current 

offering. Among the features we will explore adding are, an 

adult day-care benefit, and case management to control benefit 
costs. 

We are also working on a number of products for the 

employer market that offer asset accumulation to allow 
individuals to accumulate funds for the purchase of long-term 

care insurance, and are considering policies that combine acute 

and long-term care in a managed care environment. We are 

currently negotiating with a major employer to install and 

manage their plant. 

We plan to aggressively pursue this market, but there 

are many hurdles left to overcome. First is consumer 

awareness. As everyone has been saying this morning, most 
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people think Medicare and employer group coverages protect them 

from these risks. Of course they do not. This - .lessens the 
demand ·for~-the:._preduc~ .. ,:. • :•_;_. 

Secondly,--., on--the" pricing frbnt -tbere · is limited ·_data.-.­

The ·s·our·ces · and amounts of · data are increasing, but the only 

published material is from experience under non insured 

populations that may of little use in predicting insured 

experience. 
Third, the shifting of informal care: Care that was 

formerly provided by family members may be shifted to formal 

care givers. 

Fourth, an uncertain Federal regulatory environment: 

The tax status of these plans is either unclear, or 

unfavorable. The treatment of reserves for these policies is 

detrimental to providing this protection. The interest on 

these reserves may be taxed currently, and not afforded the 

favorab:l.e treatment of life insurance reserves. Of course, 

this also increases the price of coverage. In addition, 

employers are discouraged from prefunding for their retirees 

health benefits. This discouragement extends to the long-term 

health care arena. 
Finally, an uncertain state· regulatory environment: A 

number of states fail to recognize the new and experimental 

nature of this coverage, and so, do not allow the flexibility 

needed to develop this market. The goal of state regulation 
should be a combination of consumer protection, and 

encouragement for product innovation. 

What can we do to address these concerns? Clearly 

consumer education is a first priority. The public must be 

made aware to realize their need for long-term care services, 

and their need to financially prepare for these services. The 

Health Insurance Association of America has recently published 

a consumer ' s guide to long-term care insurance. Other groups 

are in the forefront of this effort. All sectors of our 
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society, the insurance industry, employers, and the government 
,ffl\is't- play. a role. 

On the regulatory front: Support for proposals that 

,.,.,.1.. '= , _..., ; , ,c1aL'.if.y. :the treatment of reserves for long-term care insurance, 

proposals that allow the prefunding of retiree medical costs, 

proposals that in general foster the private development of 

long-term care, must be supported. 

On the · state front: The NA.IC has carefully reviewed 

long-term health care issues, and has proposed a model law and 

regulation. We support these model laws, and encourage the 

states to adopt them. 

Federal government or the individual states must 

realize the development of private long-term care programs will 

take many years before the effect is felt. On the employers' 

side, there is a great deal of interest in offering their 

employees the ability to sign up for some form of long-term 

care coverage. But since the. expected entry of most people 

into a nursing home is well beyond retirement .age, even the 

effect of adding all employees of every company to some form of 

coverage, would not be felt for more than 15 years. The market 

for those currently retired is large, and the need is much more 

imminent, but the cost of such coverage ranges from the merely 

expensive for the newly retired, to the astronomical for older 
retirees. This is an area where private industry and 

government must work together to provide appropriate and 

affordable coverages. 
We have in other testimony in front of some House 

committees had some proposals that may be helpful there, and I 

can provide the Committee with some data that we provided there 

if you'd care. Cooperation will be essential to our success, 

and this is the only -way that this problem can be solved. 

Thank you for letting me address you. I hope that was short 

enough. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. Do we have just one 

or two questions, very quickly? 
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MS. DIETRICH: May I ask a question? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Yes. 

MS.- DIETRICH: What is the cost for,= say, a 65-year 

old for this long-term care policy, presently? 

MR. O 'CONNER: Okay. For a 6 5-year old, under our 

current offering, the cost is $48.75 a month. 

MS. DIETRICH: Does that change as the person ages, or 

is the person locked into that premium? 

MR. O'CONNER: The premium is intended to remain level 

for the person's lifetime, and could only be changed on a class 

basis -- in other words, all insureds of that same age with 

that same plan. But that would be the only way the premiums 

could be raised or lowered. 

MS. DIETRICH: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: No questions. Thank you very 

much. We have Suzy Chichester, w~o is the aide to Assemblyman 

John Rooney. 

AL WU RF: (from audience) Madam Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Yes? 

MR. WURF: I'm next on the list here. I feel that I 

should have an opportunity to speak. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: We're just trying to rearrange 

it for the time for some other--

MR. WURF: Yes, but with great deference to the 

political personage~ I'm still the next speaker here. 

S U z Y C H I C H E S T E R: (from audience) Whatever is 

your pleasure. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: I had another reason for 

putting you last -- at the end -- because I though you would be 

best there. 

MR. WURF: Madame Chairman--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: All right, if you'd like to, 

we'll just put you up. Do you mind? 

MS. CHICHESTER: You want him to come up? Fine. 
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this is 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: We' 11 have Mr. Wurf. 
Mr ~ Wur:f . · · --· 

MR. WORF:··' 'I'· apol:o·gize, Madam Chairperson.··· 

•ASSEMBLYWOMAN CREGCQ,~ · That 1-s-'-'al-l :-right. 

Okay, 

MR. WURF: I don't apologize for what I said. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: I'm just trying to know the 

reason for the schedule as such, but--

MR. WURF: Okay. My name is Al Wurf, and I represent 

AFSCME. I'm also on the Legislative Task Force on the 21st 

Century, which is also partially addressing this question of 

nursing homes, the aged of New Jersey, etc. etc. I have some 

material which may be of moment to the Committee -- al though 

I'm not going to read anything -- and at some point I' 11 pass 

this on. Not today. I don't have duplications of the material. 

I want to start out by saying that to really address 

long-term health care, you have to address the nursing home 

situation in New Jersey as well as America. Right now, as I 

understand it, in order to get into a nursing home you have pay 

$33,000 for a private patient, and who has $33,000? Those that 

do have $33,000 would last there three or four years, and go on 

to Medicaid or impoverish themselves. 

I don't think long-term heal th care has a chance of 

succeeding unless there's a move to make nursing homes 

competitive. It's interesting to observe that in New Jersey 

you have hospitals competing with each other, yet you have a 

franchise, a monopoly of nursing homes, and they seem all to go 

at the same rate in terms of their charges. 

Further, for a number of years I, as a trade unionist, 

have attempted to get long-term health care as a fringe 

benefit. About 35 or 40 years ago when I first started 

working, we had to convince workers that pensions made sense, 

and there was great resistance 

resistance to plans like Blue 

on. A number of years ago 

to pensions, and there was great 

Cross/Blue Shield, and on and 

I established a committee of 

54 



citizens and trade unionists and we sought to get a fringe 

benefit of long-term health care into the pension system. 

l:.c;might:- tell .-y:ou that, an .. actua.ry study has been done 

by the sut-e -of.r..New...:: J·er:sey ~ · 'Phat actuary,, :s,tudy -- covering 

250,000 workers who are in the Public ·· Employee · Retirement 

System -- is in the hands of the Director of Pensions -- who 

. happens to be a nice guy, but he won't give me the results of 

that for fear that we and others would jump on it to try to get 

a fringe benefit -- or get to get a benefit negotiated in our 

contract. I call upon you to get that finding. 

Contrary to one or two past speakers, State government 

can easily run long-term health insurance. Just the previous· 

speaker, incidentally, talked about $48 for long-term heal th 

insurance. He didn't say in effect what the benefit would be 

per day. But let me show you how we can do it. 

First, let's establish a level premium plan. I'm now 

talking about just the public employees, the common public 

employees. Offer it to the employees. There are thousands of 

c_ontracts with public employers in the State. Unions will 

start negotiating. It; s the kind of thing that we want. I 

think we can get it over the bargaining table, but until we do 

· get it over the bargaining table, we may have employees on a 

voluntary basis pay for it and/or getting it over the 

bargaining table the employer will pay for it. Incidentally, 

if the State of New Jersey has that level premium plan, it 
ought to make it public. 

Further, for those who are retired, there is a 

wherewithal to pay that $48 -- if in fact you get money per day 

from Prudential. Incidentally, I might tell you, Prudential, 

Blue Cross, others -- particularly Prudential -- in meeting 

with us a year ago said they won't put out a plan because 

they're unsure of the future. And I understand what they said 

then, and it's good to hear someone say today that they have a 

plan. But, when a public employee retires in this State, that 
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........ ""'"""; 

employe~ becomes eligible fo_r 3/16s of a salary as a life 

insurance. In short, a public employee retiring in this State 

can get anywhere from $5000 to $12, ooo as a death benefit. 

What if that public employee says in effect, "I have the 

wherewithal to be buried, but I'd like that money to be used--" 

that 3/16s of their salary -- "be used for long-term heal th 

care." I can't figure out that quickly what-- Okay, what is 

it, $50 a month? That's $600 a year premium. Six hundred 

dollars a year premium, if he gets $5000 he has, what, five 

years? Don't I make sense arithmetic-wise? So a public 

employee then retiring could either choose to have the death 

benefit, or else choose to go to Prudential or someone else's 

plan and be covered for long-term health care. Incidentally, I 

am now a senior citizen. And I tell you now that when you 

reach the 60s, you start worrying about going into a nursing 

home. You don't worry about being buried. 

Further, we have to do something about those who are 

already retired. Some of my friends here -- who I met, 

incidentally when we were talking about day-care centers and 

senior citizens being part of day-care centers -- and our 

Committee, and some of the members here, have a suggestion. 

That suggest.ion is, that if there's legislation passed in the 

State allowing banks to set up living trusts for those who want 
to use their life insurance for long-term health care, they can 

do so. Let me show you how that works. 

When you get old, you start meeting old people. Most 

of them seem to overly concern themselves with kids, and 
they're leaving insurance for their kids. ·Their kids in turn 

are scared they're going to go into a nursing home, and either 

they take their weal th away two year priors to that, or else 

they have to pay for that nursing home. I'm suggesting -- and 

I feel sure those who are the beneficiaries of life insurance 

policies would be receptive to it -- is that if I have to go 

into a nursing home, or if he has to go into a nursing home--
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Not him, he's too young. {laughter) If anyone has to go into 
a nursing home, and they have a life ,insurance policy, they can 
take --;tha~"'' ;l•if-e> insurance-- All :,.right·; let =:me,,. give,_ you an 

i-1-lustta.tioh--;· I--lia.ve a:··kid who loves me ve·Dy.,·much., L .. have .. a 

policy of $50, ooo on her _:_ term insurance. If I had to· go 

into a nursing home, I could go to my daughter and ask her -­

tell her or ask her -- if she minds if I go to a bank and work 

out an arrangement in terms of a living trust and the 

lawyers understand that -- and that money would be used for 

nursing home for me. She would jump through the hoop to do 

that for me, and even if she didn't want to do it she will-­

But even if she didn't want to do it, I would make that 

judgment. In short, there's a vast reservoir of insurance out 

there, and people could turn that insurance into usage for 

nursing homes. 

One or two other items. Someone here said, government 

should not. run this type of program; it should not be insurer 

of last resort. I want to tell you a little about Dukakis -­

is that how you pronounce his name? - The fell_ow that's running 

for President. No one's helping me here. Okay, I have a draft 

of a Special Commission for the Elderly of Heal th Care, and I 

read, "One, the State could design a long-term care health care 

insurance plan that would be available to elders at a 

reasonable cost. The insurance plan would have a level 

premium, and will utilize capital appreciation." What's 
happening in Massachusetts, is a benchmark for all senior 
citizen elderly people. First they pass laws saying in effect 
that if you had Medicare, a doctor must charge you the 

assignment rate. Now the Governor is moving -- and it's a 

draft, I admit it's a draft -- in a direction of covering the 

citizens under a state plan -- citizens like us -- under a 

state plan. I'm prepared to give that draft to you when you're 

done. 
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I think that's the essence,. and I just want to 
recapitulate.· ·,First, I think the State of New Jersey can set 

:up a:,c:p~--;covering. 250,000 workers -- either an optional plan, 
a.mandatory~pian, a negotiated plari. Second, with the type of 
rate Prudential and Blue Cross/Blue Shield has, an employee 
retiring at the age of 65 could opt to take his -- if I may use 
the word -- death monies, or death plan, and convert them into 
insurance to cover long-term health care. Third, those who are 
not public employees, . or retired public employees, can in an 
emergency of having to go into a nursing home, use their life 
insurance plans as a means of paying for . nursing home care. 
Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you, Mr. Wurf. 
MR. WURF: I apologize to you -- I don't remember the 

legislator. (referring to Ms. Chichester) 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: We' re not going to ask you any 

qtJestions because of the time factor. 
MR. WURF: I shun questions. (laughter) 
J\,SSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Okay. Thank you. We have 

Suzy-- Would you °like to come up? Assemblyman Rooney is the 
Chairman of the Senior Citizens Committee. 

MS. CHICHESTER: Thank you. Assemblyman John E. 
Rooney asked me to convey his sincere thanks to the Task Force 
for the opportunity to make his concerns known. The press of 
other legislative matters has kept the Assemblyman from 
attending this session today, but he has sent me with his 
statement. My name is Suzy Chichester, and I serve on the 
Assemblyman's staff. As Chairman of the Senior Citizens 
Committee, Assemblyman Rooney is most concerned with the issue 
of catastrophic and long-term health care. · 

"Senior citizens are the fastest growing segment of 
our population, expanding at a rate some five times faster than 
the general population. Currently, New Jersey counts almost 1 
million of its citizens in the senior category. This segment. 
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of our population accounts for almost one third of health care 
expenditures·,. over · one - third of hospital· patients, . and a 
whopping:-:.£: •-··.90~ , ,-.-:""i o-f, the. ·>-·:nursing-, :-n,,~0 .-home .:~•: residen1~:So., 
Dispi:oportio~tely, __ senior citi~ens b&a.r th'e burdert··of ,_health 
care costs. 

"Obviously, the pressures of this rapidly expanding 
number of older· people with the frailties and serious illnesses 
indigenous to the elderly, make them the chief beneficiaries of 
any catastrophic and long-term health care legislation that may 
be adopted at any level of government. The mere fact that this 
Task Force has been created is a tribute to the legislative 

. . 
leadership of our General Assembly in recognizing the social 
implications of future population shifts, and the challenge it 
presents to public policy in this area. 

"Providing our nation's elderly with some sort of 
protection against the potentially ruinous costs of a 
devastating illness is necessary now, and mandatory for the 
future. The bill, H.R. 2470, as recently approved by the U.S. 

start toward the process of House of ~epresentatives, is a good 
providing Americans with that 
legislation, however, is far from perfect. 
problems while it resolves others. 

needed protection. The 
It presents some 

"In any plan that is ultimately adopted, one concern 
should be adequately addressed; that of spousal 
impoverishment. So many programs designed for our elderly now 
require a spend down of assets before the individual can 
qualify for help. Realistically, this means that the surviving 
partner -- or the couple, if recovery from the illness was 
obtained -- has no home to live in, no car to travel in, ne> 
bank account, and not even enough money to provide for burial 
costs, and little or no hope of replenishing assets. The very 
system that has given longer lifespans, proposed for many, 
living those extra years in poverty and deprivation. 
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"I hope you' 11 take a look at my legislation, A-4282, 
that creates a Victims of Cancer and Long-Term Illness Fund, 
providing help in the form of grants or low-interest loans 
without regard to income eligibility standards imposed for 
other programs, or requiring asset spend down. The revenues to 
support the fund come from an increase in the tax on cigarettes 
and a-new tax on all other tobacco products not currently taxed 
-- such as cigars, pipe tobacco, chewing tobacco, and snuff. 
Some of the additional monies generated would .be diverted to 
the already existing Cancer Research Fund. 

"We must help our growing elderly population by not 
dooming a large ·portion of that population to a precarious 
existence. We must protect them and allow them to live a safe 
and rewarding life.. . A sensible and successful catastrophic 
health care plan would show our vulnerable aged that they are 
an important part of our family of Americans, and that they are 
loved, and that they will._ be cared for, now and through the 
uncertainties of the future." 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. Okay, 
Assemblyman Bocchini wi 11 be speaking next. After which we 
will have Esther Abrams and Mr. Hubschmitt. Thank you 
AS SE MB LYMAN JO$ E P H L. B O C C H I N I, JR.: 

Thank you Assemblywoman. I just noticed, we have a Task Force 
here on Catastrophic and Long-Term Health Care, and we probably 
could use a few more people that might be a little older on 
it. Fortunately for everyone here, it appears that we're all 
in good health and have a lot of years ahead of us. 

But not withstanding that, you know, Madam Chairman, 
and members of the Task Force, I'm completing my third term in 
the Legislature. I'm not seeking reelection, so there's not a 
big push on this from the standpoint of looking to go back to 
the Assembly. But I must tel 1 you one of the things -- and 
Marion, I don't know if you've experienced it, but I'm willing 
to venture that you have; I'm willing to venture that 
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Assemblyman Rooney has, as well as all the other 

Assemblypersons and Senators in this State. The one·· call • that 
you···get·,,in ··y«?ur 1 legis'1ative office .-,that i.y,ou lcan.1 tt- do-,·anyth:ing 
about~~i.'s,r ... ~'.Where,,.cdo ,.,L-.send-. my~ ,mother? _,Where __ do . I~ send -my 

father? How do I help them get into a nursing care facility? 

They're sick." And you look around and you make phone calls, 

and it's probably one of the most frustrating experiences I've 

had in the six years in the Legislature. 

At the same time I get people that come into my law 

office, and they'll say, "Joe, I've got to have my parents sign 

the house over to me. I've got to hold off for two years." So 

they in effect bankrupt their parents. They're despondent 

about it themselves. Ther're scared to death, "This is my 

mother. This is my father. I love them. I want to provide 

for them, but I still have a wife and two children," or "a 

husband and two children, and I need to take care of them." 

It's a vicious circle. It's something that as time progresses, 

and as our citizens continue to live longer years -- God bless 

them -- we're going to have to concern ourselves with. 

I personally believe the prospects for change lie with 

the Legislature. I know there are those who might say that 

government should not become· involved in this type of insurance 

activity, as far as long-term health care is concerned. 

I had the opportunity to meet approximately two weeks 

ago with Mr. Wurf, and much of what he shared with you this 

morning he shared with me at that time. I believe much of what 

he says is very very accurate and on point. I believe that 

there is a need for most certificates of need, as far as 

nursing homes are concerned. Last week my office, as a result 

of my meeting with Mr. Wutf, I wrote to Doug Forrester and 

asked him for the actuary study that took pl'ace in r~lation to 

the Division of Pensions on this particular issue. I think 

it's something that this Task Force, Marion, should very 

seriously look for and see what benefit we could get from it. 
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The facts very simply are, you know, the money is not 
there for Mr._ and Mrs. John Q. Public who are in that vast 

'.: middle,-, income bracket . They'. re stuck. And what makes it even 

, ;, , more:.,terri'f-ying, I look at my mother and father now -- my dad 

being 67, my mother being 63, and knock on wood they enjoy good 

health. I had a very traditional Italian mother, "I work for 

all this for you and your brother." Well I say, "Don't worry 

about that, Mom. I'm doing fine, and, God forbid, I'm doing 

well enough that if Bob ever needs anything I' 11 be able to 

take care of him. What you have is yours." But there aren't 

necessarily people in the same position that I'm in. Not 

everybody has been ·fortunate enough to have the type of 

successes -- as mild as they might be, or as great as they 

might be, according to the beholder of it is -- that there are 

far more people my age who are concerned. You start to become 

concerned. 

I had to chuckle, Al, when you 

don't worry about what happens when you 

money to bury yourself." You' re right. 

said, "You know, you 

die if you've got the 

I hear people tell me 

constantly when they come in to do wills in my office, "I don't 

care what happens when I'm gone. I don't care where they take 

me. " Some do, but a lot of them chuckle and say, "Hey, when 

I'm out, I'm out." But when happens when you're here? Right? 
What happens when you' re here? What happens when you' re here 
and you need somebody, and you need a place to go? 

Long-term care insurance is intended to cover 
long-term medical costs, and I think the State of New Jersey-­

I think it's something that we can put ourselves in the 

foref~ont as far as making that fringe benefit available to the 

public employees, in a bargaining fashion, as a fringe 

benefit. It's something that the employee. who is now 3.0, I 

think will see the wisdom in it. It may be more difficult for 

that employee who is 50/55, but we' re going to have to start 
somewhere. We can have a11 the Task Force meetings that we 
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want, unless we begin some type of progressive movement on it 
we could be in big trouble. 

Many of the insurance companies that offered long-term 
insurance policies are very costly. They have 
pre-hospitalization requirements, or a 60 to 90 day deductible 
in which the patient bears the cost. With diseases such as 
Alzheimer's and Parkinson's, hospitalization is usually not 
necessary. But in order to receive assistance most policies 
require some type of· pre-hospitalization. There are only eight 
insurance companies in New Jersey that have been approved by 
the Department of Insurance in meeting the minimum standards 
for long-term care coverage. A major problem with offering 
long-term care policies is cost. Congress has been looking 
into public/private partnerships as a way to advance this type 
of coverage and keep costs down, while the President 
President Reagan -- has signed into law a catastrophic heal th 

.care bill. This plan to protect older Americans from 
. catastrophic health care costs does not cover nursing home care 
for those people under 65 who have no health insurance.· 

In looking at things, and putting things iri 
perspective, if I had my choice, New Jersey does not need $180 
million bond issue for a baseball stadium when you have a 
population of seniors and older Americans, New Jerseyans, who 
are wondering what is going to happen to them in the year 2000. 

As far as I'm concerned, we need to get our priorities 
in order. I think one of those priorities -- because I might 
be 43 right now, I hope I'm still around at 63, but I just want 
to be certain when I'm 63 and the people who graduated in the 
class of '62 from Trenton High with me, they have a place that 
they' re going to be able to be taken care of; and that their 
families, their children, and grandchildren, aren't going to be 
looking and saying, "What am I going to so with my parents or 
grandparents?" Thank you. --~10PEfHV OF 

NE\'Y..}J:RSEY ST/\TE UB,_RARY 

185 W. STATE ST. PO BOX 520 
TRENTON, NJ 08625-05W 



ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much, 

Assemblyman. Is Dr. Crystal still here? I wanted to ask him 
one question,- -_Is.he? _:_(_affirmative response) Dr.- Crystal, I'd 

just:.::would like• •to, -ask· you one .,question ...... can you. c.ome he-re# 

Dr·; Crystal? 

DR. CRYSTAL: Yes? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: I just want to ask you one 

question, if I may. Do any other states, besides Alaska, have 

state workers' long-term insurance? 

DR. CRYSTAL: (from audience) A number of states are 

looking at it. California is starting to look at it. And of 

course, probably one of the most important .examples is the 

Federal example. I don't know if you're familiar with the plan 

that's being put forth by the Office of Personnel Management. 

The response is similar to what Mr. Wurf was talking about 

where there is voluntary conversion of articulated life 

insurance values, on a one-time basis at age 55. According to 

the Office of Personnel Management Plan-- (inaudible) There 

are many states that are looking at state employee long-term 

care benefits. I think that's very important because it's a 

way to put something in place and test it, without having to 

deal with the adverse selection problem that is so difficult 

for all the plans that have to recruit people on a one by one 

basis, to deal with. So there's a good argument that the way 

to test this and get it into place is to define populations on 

an across-the-board basis, then you have a realistic way of 
looking at actuarial experiences. So I would encourage you to 

look seriously at the option of the state employee plan -- not 

only as a way of helping state employees, but as a way of 

testing some concepts that can then be expanded to other 

markets. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you. We're going to look 

into that 

Chairperson 

Jersey AARP. 

also. Our next witness would be Esther 

of the State Legislative Committee fo.r 

Oh here you are. 
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ESTHER ABRAMS: Chairperson Crecco, members of the 

Task Force on Catastrophic and Long-Term Heal th Care, my name 

is Esther Abrams. I live in Princeton, and I'm the Chairperson 

of the New Jersey State Legislative Committee of the American 

Association of Retired Persons. 

I would like to digress for just a little bit. I 

appreciate the gentleman from Pru~ential, and I know that the 

AARP does work with the Prudential for long-term heal th care 

policy; but we represent in New Jersey over 900, ooo members, 

and of course they start at age 50. Nationally we have 26 

million members. So there are people I'm sure that can take 

advantage of that, but my husband and I-- We live in 

Princeton. We' re relatively comfortable. But we did decide 

that the risk of getting long-term care insurance certainly was 

overcome by the cost for people our age because I'm late 60s 

and he's in the 70s already. So this is a factor. The cost is 

tremendous for older people. 

I'm doubly grateful for the opportunity to speak to 

you today because I'm also a spokesperson for the Women's 

Initiative, which is a new program that has been started by 

AARP. I have not only become fully aware of how overwhelming 

the long-term care problems are for the elderly, but also how 

much more severe these problems are for older women. 

Among the elderly, men and women have significantly 

distinct heal th histories which affect their chance of being 

poor and alone. 

while older 

Olqer men have. higher rates of fatal diseases, 

women are more prone to long-term chronic 

diseases. 

activity, 

likely to 

than ·men 

Women aged 65 and over have more days of restricted 

longer average stays in the hospital, and are more 

be transferred from the hospital to the nursing home 

aged 65 and over. In effect, women have a greater 

likelihood of surviving their spouses and of being impoverished 

through out-of-pocket health expenses related to long-term 

chronic illness. 
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Medicare's emphasis on acute care hospitalization and 

physician services penalizes older women. Because many of 

thei-~:,chrol\i.c -_;_health care needs:. are .. ,not . .:..covered;. · older : women 
must ' pay· · a _..,. .greater.,.. ·percentage-,, o-f · the:i-r, -income .on Medicare. 

expenses. It is estimated that in 1986 Medicare paid for 49% 

of the total health care expenditures of unmarried men over age 

65, 44% of the total heal th expend:i tures of married couples 

over 65, but only 33% of the total health care expenditures of 

unmarried older women. Unmarried women age 65 and over, spent 

a greater percentage of their incomes on heal th care -- 16. 3% 

-- than did either unmarried older men -- 12.2% -- or older 

couples -- who spent 8.9%. This is due both to women's lower 

median incomes and to their greater likelihood of having health 

needs that Medicare does not pay for. 

Women are the primary users of long-term care because 

they have more. chronic health problems and they live longer 

than men. Long-term care includes in-home services, adult 

day-care, and care in resident facilities, convalescent homes, 

intermediate care, and skilled nursing facilities~ 

The majority of the elderly are not in nursing homes. 

And this is -- from my standpoint -- the risk that we were 

taking into account, whether we would end up in a nursing 

home. Most older people will never be a resident of a nursing 
home. Contrary to popular belief, only 5% of the elderly are 
institutionalized at any given time; 20% may require nursing 

home care sometime ~uring their lifetime. The chance of 
institutionalization increases with age. Only 2% of persons 

between 65 and 74 are nursing home residents, compared with 22% 

of those over age 85. Yet in 1985 about $35 billion, or 8% of 

the national heal th care expenditures was spent for nursing 

home care. This is three times the amount spent a decade ago, 

and 16 times what was spent in 1965 when Medicare and Medicaid 

were established. 
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At the same time, current public and private 
expenditures for .home heal th care and ·· other · communi ty--based 
long-:,-te.rm:-,.-,care ,,are,,-only: ~a ,,small .::fract:iiom.:,:of .. ;:,the L81'Dbunt·.;1,now, 
spent on·. nursing homef?. Medicare · does .. ...not .. ~pay. ... for .. long:""'!te.rm 
chronic care. Unfortunately, millions of elderly persons and 
their younger family members incorrectly believe that it does. 
One of the duties of AARP volunteers is to dissuade our members 
of this belief, and to help them- to understand that Medicare 
will only pay for a limited number of days of skilled nursing 
care after the patient is discharged from the hospital. 

On the other hand, while the average cost of one year 
in a nursing home~- and this is nationwide -- is approximately 
$22,000, about half of the country's total nursing home bill is 
paid by residents and their families. But personal savings are 
quickly expended. Consequently, Medicaid, a program designed 
to fund health care for the poor, has become the predominant 
public payer of long-term care. And women, who have worked and 
saved along with their husbands throughout their lives face the 
humiliation and financial nightmare of spousal impoverishment 
in the later years of their lives. Once a spouse becomes 
eligible for Medicaid, much of the couple's monthly income may 
be considered available to pay the nursing home bill. The 
spouse living in the community may then keep only a small 
spousal maintenance allowance for living expenses. Women are 
more likely than men to be pauperized in this way, both because 
they are less likely to have income in their own name, and 
because they tend to outlive their husbands. 

Millions of elderly need home-based care. A critical 
need and a heartfelt desire of most older people is to remain 
in their own home despite infirmities; the need to live out 
their lives independently, not in a nursi~g home. In order to 
do so, many need some help with maintenance care such as 
bathing, dressing, or eating; or with daily activities such as 
meal preparation or shopping. Coverage of home care is 
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extremely limited under both Medicare and Medicaid. Most 
········ ·· · · · -·-·-' -home-based care is provided by unpaid care givers, primarily 
-=- i:.,,,;.:; .,;'. female relatives. They receive no pay, no benefits, and little 

relief from this demanding work. The average age of care 

givers of the elderly is 57, but more than one in three is over 

65, indicating that the informal care system is composed in 

large part of the young..:.old caring for the old-old. Since 

these care givers receive· little relief from a 24 hour day, 7 

days a week, many develop heal th problems of their own. New 

Jersey has taken some positive steps with a Respite Relief for 

Care Givers program, but the problem remains a large one. 
AARP's concern about Medicare beneficiaries' access to 

home health service they are presently entitled to, as well as 

the quality of the care they do receive, arises from many 

sources. We are concerned about data showing rising denials of 

home health claims. Despite evidence of increased need for 

this service, expenditures for this ben~fit have not kept up 

with need. 
The increasing need for home heal th care is due in 

part to changing patterns in health care delivery and 

reimbursement. While the Department of Health and Human 

Services has yet to document the extent to which earlier 

hospital discharge has increased the need for post-acute care, 
there is every reason to believe this is the case. We know 
that the average length of hospitalization has shortened for 
-every diagnostic related group, and for patients of every age. 
It is a fact that hospitals are discharging elderly patients 
quicker and sicker. However, since the implementation of 
prospective payment for hospital service, the rate of growth in 

Medicare outlays for home health care has dropped sharply. 

We are also alarmed by. the government's ineffective 

monitoring and control of providers; lack of national minimum 

qualifications for home heal th aides; and the virtual absence 

of· consumer information with which to select a high quality 
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provider. _With this in mind, the New Jersey State Legislative 

Cammi ttee of AARP is planning to work with State -agencies in 

support ""of ,a Sen-ate Rill~. 3151 to achieye mandatoty, .. lioensu.re of 

home· care~- agencies. ·· · 

Finally, I want to express my thanks and that of the 

New Jersey State Legislative Committee of AARP, as well as AARP 

mempers -living throughout our State, to you, Chairperson 

Crecco, as well as the entire New Jersey Assembly, for your 

willingness to examine and develop recommendations relating to 

the financing of catastrophic and long-term health care. And I 

would like to add at this point after listening here all 

morning, that I appreciate so much having the opportunity as a 

consumer · to talk to you, because I feel that there was a 

tremendous representation of all types of groups, but I think 

the consumers really have to add their piece. They' re the 

people that are really concerned about this issues. And by 

making New Jersey a leader in the development of a more 

equitable and ·accessible health care system, you will also 

bring hope to all elderly citizens of New Je~sey. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much. Any 

questions from the Cammi ttee? (no response) I suppose it's 

time now, and I'll hold my questions. 

MS. ABRAMS~ Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Our last person to speak is 

Edward Hubschmitt, Advisory Council, Passaic Office on Aging. 

EDWARD HUBSCHMITT: Yes. I'll only take four 

minutes. I 've got the shortest and the most different, would 

it be? Wait until I give it to you. My name is Ed 

Hubschmitt. I'm Legislative Chairman of the Advisory Council 

to the Passaic County Office on Aging. I represent 77,000 

Passaic County senior citizens. 

We have to erase the word "catastrophic" from 

illness. Illness is a human condition, and it is natural to 

get old, and get sick, and die. For us humans to have allowed 
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long-term health care to become one of the most lucrative 

businesses in our society, needs correcting now. 

As far as funding options go, the House of 

Representatives has just passed a bill to alleyiate 

catastrophic illness, paid for by us senior citizens. I think 

we should be left out in the State of New Jersey for any more 

_payments. Also, the Brookings Institute ·-- who is quite 

well-known -- in a study just published says, "Until insurers 

attempt to improve coverage and reduce premiums, private 

long-term care insurance cannot be expected to be a major 

option for financing long-term care for the elderly." 

Brookings predicts change may come slowly; we can't afford it 

-- senior citizens. We don't have the time. We've got to 

reform existing programs and develop some more realist~c _ones. 

To attempt to eliminate catastrophic illness without 

additional sources of income, and regulating the health 

providers would be extremely impossible. It would just be . a 

joke I think. For additional income we already have 

legislation introduced into the Assembly by Assemblyman D. 

Bennett Mazur A-3786, which is to increase the casino revenue 

fund from 8% to 12%. The casinos give away $500 million a year 

in complimentary services to high stake rollers. They surely 

could give 4% more for the people who voted them in in 1976. 

This 4% could be used to finance health care for the elderly. 

It no longer would be catastrophic. 

But without regulation of heal th · care providers, all 

would be lost. We have legislation introduced there also by 

Senators Garibaldi and Orechio, stating that these bills would 

keep doctors' fees within the guidelines arrived at by the 

United States Secretary of Heal th and Human Services. These 

guidelines would be just as binding on doctors as they are on 

the senior citizens. 
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We, the senior citizens of Passaic County, 

the Task Force to consider our recommendations. 

are asking 

Our great 
amount of,- experience_, on this ea_rth. has shown: us that many great 
problems ·have simple·-answers. Thank:you-~ ,,, , , ,.._, 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: Thank you very much.' ·'Any 

questions? (no response) Thank you all for being here. The 

meeting is adjourned. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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Mdm. Chairperson and Members of the Task Force 

It is an honor to appear before you today. 

I am here as a researcher. I work for the National Center 

for Health Services Research and Health Care Technology 

Assessment (NCHSR) which is part of the Public Health Service. I 

will be presenting information on long-term care insurance based 

on my involvement with research on this topic over the past 8 

years. 

Background 

Private options for enhancing the resources of the elderly 

and mobilizing them to help pay for long-term care had, until 

recently, been largely unexplored. Insurance, the major vehicle 

for financing health care privately, was generally perceived as 

not applicable to long-term care. As a result private financing 

mechanisms for long term care did not receive much serious 

attention. 

This situation is beginning to change. In 1979 the National 

Center for Health Services Research undertook a multifaceted 

study to determine whether and under what circumstances a market 

for long-term care could exist. This study has produced research 

results which have shown that a reasonable case can be made for 

long-term care insurance, that data are available to begin to 

examine alternative prototype benefits, that a few insurers were 

actively involved in selling such coverage, and that there was 

more consumer interest in such insurance than was first thought. 
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Through various publications and presentations the NCHSR research 

has served as the catalyst to further research and development. 

We believe our findings have helped the insurance industry to 

· adopt its current, more positive attitude about the potential of 

risk pooling mechanisms to insure long-term care and stimulated 

further inquiry into ways to finance those options. 

No One Model 

Three basic models of LTC insurance are currently being 

marketed -- free-standing LTC insurance, Social-HMOs, and 

continuing care retirement communities (CCRCs)~ The approaches 

differ along a variety of dimensions including the 

comprehensiveness of the benefit package, the management of risk, 

and the organizational structure. Free-.standing LTC i~surance is 

the most generic of these models in that it focuses on the long­

term care risks alone. The Social-HMO model expands the concept 

by integrating chronic care benefits with acute care benefits in 

a managed care environment. The CCRC model (in its broadest 

configuration) expands the concept further by providing sheltered 

housing as well as a comprehensive health care guarantee. No one 

model may be best for everyone. Each is undergoing testing,· 

revisions, and further development. However, it is the free­

standing type of product that has captured much of the initial 

interest in the insurability of long-term care and it is on this 

approach that I will focus my discussion today. 

~ree-atudina LTC Insurance 

Medicare and Medigap insurance policies are intended to 
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cover only acute illness or post-acute recover. In contrast, 

free-standing LTC insurance is an insurance policy that provides 

for the payment of care in an institution, the community, or an 

individual's residence when such care goes beyond the Medicare 

definitions of care and when the policy holder is not locked into 

a particular provider system, Implicit in this definition are 

two very important distinguishing features. As noted, chronic 

illness rather than acute illness or post-acute recovery is the 

focus of the insurance so the benefits are designed to address 

the need for personal assistance with basic activities of daily 

living (often termed intermediate or custodial care) in addition 

to skilled nursing and therapeutic sevices. Also, the-benefits 

are designed to pay for an extended spell of illness. These are 

the key features that distinguish long-term care insurance from 

the acute care related nursing home and home care benefits of 

Medicare and Medigap insurance. 

There are several reasons why the free-standing type of 

product has captured much of the initial interest in dealing with 

the problem of financing long-term care. By focusing on the 

long-term care risk alone it is easier to define what constitutes 

the insurable risk. Under this approach one can specify the 

features of the policy and provide a clearer description of the 

benefits to potential buyers. It also makes it possible to 

market the insurance as a new product rather than a modified 

supplementary Medicare policy that then must compete against the 

cheaper Medigap policies which are widely available and which 

have been purchased by about two-thirds of the elderly. 
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The market for free-standing LTC insurance is still new and 

not well developed. ·About 25 products are now being sold and 

many have only become available within the last year. 

Information on the number of policies sold is difficult to obtain 

but estimates are in th~ range of 200,000. Most of the policies 

have been sold on an individual basis although some are marketed 

through groups. 

Until recently most of the insurers involved in selling this 

kind of protection were small companies. This has begun to 

change, however, and some of the largest insurance companies are 

in the process of developing and marketing their own products. 

The specific features of the policies available now differ 

but they have a number of things in common. Most cover nursing 

home care at the skilled and intermediate levels. A few also 

offer custodial and home health care benefits but typically these 

benefits are limited and sometimes only available under an 

optional rider. Benefits are structured as fixed amounts per day 

with waiting period as long as 100 days before benefits begin and 

there are limits on the coverage period of anywhere from 2-6 

years. In addition to emphasizing institutional care and carving 

out a segment of the long-term risk, a variety of techniques (see 

TABLE 1). are used to manage the risk. 

The premiums are age rated, with the rate fixed at the time 

of purchase in most cases. The actual premium rates vary widely 

among products depending on the age at time of purchase, the 

features of the policy, and the expense-loading charged by the 

insurer. One recent review of several of the available products, 

published in Money Magazine, indicated a 65 year old purchaser 

4 



should expect to pay $174 to $1,451 a year for policies that 

cover skilled and custodial care. 

In assessing the free-standing products currently available 

it is easy to find fault. Most tend to perpetuate the 

institutional bias that prevails in our public programs, they use 

restrictive risk management techniques, and the better ones, 

while not exhorbitant are also not cheap. All these factors 

serve to limit the market for such protection. 

Nonetheless, free-standing products are available that 

deserve serious consideration by those that can afford them. By 

focusing on the nursing home risk, they address•the major cause 

of catastrophic health care expenses among the elderly. For the 

elderly, out-of-pocket payments on nursing home care are about 

equal to out-of-pocket payments on all other health care expenses 

combined. 

The limits and restrictions are a function of a conservative 

industry entering into a new and unexplored product line with 

little hard information to guide them. As more insurers enter 

the market, competition should encourage better benefit packages 

and more affordable premiums. I believe we can also expect to 

see creative linkages with other risk pooling vehicles to achieve 

more comprehensive coverages that take advantage of managed care and 

offsetting risks. 

•urther Development Necessary 

Further research and development will be necessary to 

achieve the full potential of private market LTC insurance. 
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Comprehensive products sold to groups before retirement that use 

some form of managed care environment are good candidates for 

overcoming the major barriers to such a market. Insurers should 

be encouraged to offer Medicare supplemental options that include 

long-term care benefits. The interest on the part of some 

Medicare-HMOs in offering LTC insurance to their members is a 

move in this direction worthy of note. 

Further opportunities to expand the market for LTC insurance 

include reinsuring retirement communities for their chronic care 

guarantee and developing similar risk pools among community 

members prefering to stay in their own homes. Both these 

strategies are appealing because they involve group sales where 

all parties to the agreement work together to control the risk in· 

a managed care environment that includes the home setti~g. 

Strategies for market expansion might also involve links with 

other financing vehicles such as home equity conversion or life 

insurance to take advantage of offsetting risks while promoting 

recognition of the need for long-term care protection. Other 

strategies involve tax preferences for individual savings 

accounts dedicated to the purchase of LTC insurance or for 

encouraging employers to offer such protection as a retirement 

option. Although the current fiscal environment is not 

encouraging for tax incentives, the need for protection against 

the catastrophic expenses associated with long-term care may lead 

people to conclude that these strategies may warrant special 

consideration. 
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Poaaible Public_ Polic~ Rolea 

One of the most intriguing aspects of LTC insurance is the 

potential it holds for relieving some of the pressure on 

Medicaid. Government payors will benefit if private insurance 

can reduce the role of Medicaid as a source of payment for middle 

income elderly by delaying or avoiding the need to spend-down 

their resources. It also may be viewed as an alternative to the 

current incentive to transfer assets to gain eligibility. The 

possibility that there could be savings to public budgets as well 

as benefits to consumers suggests that there is a public role in 

encouraging the market. 

A variety of public policy interventions to support the 

emerging market are possible. A relativly inexpensive yet 

extremely important role is that of consumer education. Further 

efforts_are needed at both the Federal and state level to inform 

consumers that Medicare and most private insurance policies do 

not provide extended care benefits for chronic illness and 

disability. As products become available consumers will also 

need information and guidance to make informed choices. States 

in particular can play a significant educational role through the 

office of the commissioner of insurance. They can also encourage 

insurance regulators to assist the development and marketing of 

such benefits by removing regulatory restrictions that inhibit 

reasonable product experimentation. Significant additional 

support for market development may be achieved by coordinating 

the cost and care management mechanisms of public long-term care 

programs with those that the private market views as important to 

its success. 
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The significant role states have in financing long-term 

care, along with having been delegated much of the responsibility 

for the structure and administration of long-term care programs 

also provides the incentive for more direct support of the 

emerging insurance options. In particular, states should 

carefully evaluate their current role in financing long-term 

care. The rules governing eligibilty for Medicaid through the 

spend-down process should encourage the use of an indiviual's 

resources for their own long-term care. 

Medicaid cannot afford to act as inheritance insurance for 

heirs and a private. LTC insurance market cannot fully develop if 

Medicaid plays this role. At the same time it is important to 

recognize that there are situations where Medicaid rules may 

stand in the way of sensible support. Spousal impoverishment 

brought about by the deeming rules in some states is an example 

of this. In structuring interventions to deal with such problems 

consideration should be given to incentives that encourage 

private initiative and responsibility. 

More aggressive strattsgies involve direct market subsidies. 

Ther~ are strong re~sons for considering such interventions 

in the market. Long-term care insurance is in its infancy. 

While there has been considerable interest in product 

development the market is small and underdeveloped. Until there 

is more experience with insuring long-term care we can expect 

progress to be slow and conservative. The limited market size 

and conservative pricing in turn tends to restrict the market to 

relatively high income persons. It is in this context that 
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strategies to subsidize the market may make sence. By targeting 0 

subsidies to persons otherwise unable to afford the insurance the 

market size is increased and greater numbers of those most likely 

to spend-down to Medicaid are included. 

Market subsidies could take several different forms. One 

approach would be to guaranteeofull protection from further asset 

spend down for"anyone paying through insurance or out-of-pocket 

for a set number of years. This would address the concern that 

current policies do not offer complete catastrophic protection; 

the maximum coverage being about 6 years. A disadvantage of this 

approach is the potential of public dollars being spent on 

relatively well-off individuals. 

Asset waiver strategies are based on the assumption that a 

major barrier to market development is the desire for· asset 

protection. While this may be important, it is also likely that 

the current market faces affordability constraints which loom at 

least as large as a barrier to further development. 

Premium subsidies in the form of tax credits or deductions 

if a person buys a State certified level of insurance protection 

is another way to support market development. This type of 

subsidy could increase the affordability of current products. 

Both asset waiver and premium subsidy strategies are targeted to 

the consumer and could be varied on the basis of income. 

Other subsidy strategies could be in the form of premium 

tax breaks or public reinsurance programs targeted to help 

insurers overcome their hesitancy to enter or expand the market. 

Carefully crafted, a state reinsurance program could serve as the 

basis for a data collection initiative that could help overcome 
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insurers hesitancy to share information on utlization and cost 

patterns under their programs. The lack of such data has been 

perceived as one of the barriers to more rapid market expansion. 

Assistance to market development might also be accomplished 

by paying the insurance premium for persons eligible for Medicaid 

on the basis of low income. This would serve to broaden the risk 

pool and help spread administrative costs. 

There is no one approach to supporting the market that is 

obviously the best at this stage in the development of the 

market. Depending on specific market characteristics and its 

particular objectives a State might choose to use one or several 

of these strategies to encourage developent of this type of 

insurance. The uniqueness of a state's Medicaid eligibility 

criteria in addition to its regulatory approach to long-term care 

insurance will drive state initiated efforts to conform with the 

constraints they impose in other areas. In addition, a state's 

own fiscal outlook and political climate will play a role in 

determining whether strict budget neutrality will be the measure 

of feasibility and success or whether the benefits of a more 

workable method of paying for long-term care will be viewed as 

worthy of more resources. 

Conclusion 

The need for long-term care is the single most important 

cause of catastrohphic health expenses for the elderly. Although 

this fact was noted nearly 10 years ago in a report by the 

Congressional Budget Office, it is only recently that it is 
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receiving much attention. Perhaps the reason for the 

previous lack of recognition was that there was no alternative 

short of a National program and that has repeatedly been avoided 

as too costly. It made little sense to alert the public to the 

significant financial risk associated wtih the need for long-term 

care if there was no workable solution. A break in this 

stalemate has occured with the recognition of long-term care as 

an insurable risk. The new private financing initiatives have 

begun to show how the risk can be shared in a way that encourages 

individuals with resources to participate in risk pooling and in 

the process help clarify those areas where there will be a need 

for public involvement on behalf of individuals without adequate 

resources. 

The development of LTC insurance is in its infancy and there 

is a need for improved data on virtu~lly all aspects of that 

development including information on utilization, costs, risk 

management, marketing, and the impact of such coverage. At the 

current time it seems that supporting this development is a wise 

first step. There is sufficient uncertainty about long-term care 

needs now and especially in the future that a pluralistic 

approach makes considerable sense; particularily when the 

possibility of continued stalemate is likely. As we learn more 

about how to insure long-term care other, bolder, strategies may 

suggest themselves. 
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Table 1. FREE-STANDING LTC INSURANCE RISK MANAGEJEHT TECHNIOOES. 

o PRIOR HOSPITALIZATION REQUIRED - USUALLY 3 DAYS 

o NURSING HIIE OCCUPANCY flJST BEGIN IN 14-90 DAYS - 30 DAYS IIJST TfPICAL 

o MJST BE SNE ILLNESS OR INJURY THAT CAUSED THE HOSPITAL STAY 

o PHYSICIAN RECOMNDATION AND REVIEW OF CARE REWIRED 

o SCREEN SALES FOR PRE-EXISTING HEALTH CONDITIONS AND PRIOR HOSPITAL OR 
NURSING HM STAYS - TUE PERIODS VARY 

o EXCEPTION TO COVERAGE, E.6., CARE OUTSIDE U.S., EXPENSES DUE TO WAR, 
SELF-INFLICTED INJURY, MENTAL DISORDERS 

o PREMlltl ADJUSTIEJfTS POSSIBLE 

o REIEVABILITY MAY NOT BE GUARANTEED 

o SERVICE DEFINITifJC Ifll)ORTANT ESPECIALLY IF THEY DETERMINE LENGTH OF 
a>YERA6E AND BEIEFIT LEVELS 
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Good morning. I am Linda Schofield, Senior Consultant and 

Research Director of the Connecticut Governor's Commission on Private 

and Public Responsibilities for Financing Long Term Care for the 

Elderly. I am also Assistant Director for Government Affairs at The 

Travelers Companies. 

I am pleased to have been invited to report on the findings of the 

commission's study as well as on the Governor's Action Plan designed to 

implement the Commission's final recollllllendations. 

In anticipation of the potential crisis in long term care, 

Governor William A. O'Neill appointed the Commission on Financing Long 

Term Care in June, 1986. The Governor charged the Commission to assess 

the long term care financing needs in Connecticut, to evaluate our 

current·system of financing long term care for the elderly, and to 

propose new financing methods. He especially sought to identify ways 

the State could work with the private sector to increase private sector 

support in financing·long term care for the elderly. 

After a year of research and a series of public hearings we have 

issued a report identifying the impediments to private financing and 

suggesting strategies to minimize or overcome them. Our 

recommendations focused on State leadership to stimulate action at the 

state and federal levels, in the private sector, and in the community. 

My following remarks highlight the findings, conclusions, and 

recommendations of our report. 

The financing of long term care is rapidly emerging as one of the 

most serious challenges facing this country. This issue's sudden 

ascent in importance has occurred because a number of social and 

economic trends are coming together to create the potential for a 

silent social disaster. These factors are creating significant 
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pressures on state and federal goverrment, on business and community 

institutions, and on our individual citizens and families. 

The moat significant factor is the "graying" of our population, 

particularly the increases in numbers of those 85 years of age and 

older who are most likely to require long term care. The demographic 

projections in Connecticut roughly parallel those for the nation. From 

1980 to the year 2000, the number ot Connecticut residents age 65 and 

older will grow by 41 percent, while the state's population as a whole 

wi11 grow by only 9 percent. By 2000, nearly one-half of those age 65 

and older, will have reached age 75 (48 percent). 

Between 1980 and 2000, the number of elderly in Connecticut age 75 

to 84 is projected to increase by 70 percent, from 3.5 percent of the 

total population to s.s percent ~f the total population. Those aged 85 

years of age and older will increase by 67 percent, from 1.2 percent of 

the tot~l population to 1.8 percent of the total population. By the 

year 2000, those age 75 and older will constitute 7.3 percent of our 

population. 

Other factors contributing to the growing urgency ot the long term 

care problem include changing family structures, such as the increased 

prevalence of family members living far-apart, divorces and two-worker 

families, the current limited range of options for financing long term 

care, a public policy bias toward care provided in institutional 

settings, and the lack of financial preparedness of individuals and 

families to meet long term care needs. Adding to the problem is the 

enormous misconception that there already exists a system for financing 

long term care through- Medicare, when no such system exists. 

The greying of Connecticut's population will result in an 

unprecedented increased need for both acute and long term care services 
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over the next 13 years. In Connecticut, by the year 2000, we project a 

44 percent increase in the number of physician visits by the state's 

elderly, a 31 percent increase in the number of acute hospital days 

consUllled by the state's elderly, a 42 percent increase in the number of 

Connecticut elderly residing in skilled and intermediate care nursing 

homes, and a 53 percent increase in the number of elderly receiving 

skilled health care, personal care, and homemaker services at home. 

'l'hese projections for long term care require us to address the 

adequacy of our resources both to deliver and to finance future long 

term care services. 

currently, it is estimated that over 80 percent of all long term 

care services are provided by families and friends. 'l'his resource is 

crucial for three reasons: Older persons prefer to be cared for at 

home by loved ones: informal care is provided without expense to the 

public sector: and informal care often delays or precludes the use of 

formal services thus relieving demands on the long term care delivery 

system. In fact, the primary determinant of institutionalization 

versus care in the community is the availability of assistance from 

others, not the severity of illnesses or functional impairments. 

Formal long term care services are provided through a 

loosely-organized, partially-integrated system of service providers, 

including long term care facilities, home care agencies, adult day care 

centers and other community-based support services. However, the 

current rate of growth in formal service capacity is not adequate to 

meet projections of future needs. 

Just as the delivery system will not have the capacity to meet 

future needs, the financing systems will likewise not be adequate to 

the challenge. 'l'he stark reality is that individuals and families pay 

ltv 
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tor long term care from savings and available income until their 

resources are exhausted. At that point, the State Medicaid program 

begins paying the bills tor nursing home care and some coJDlllunity-based 

services. 
0~ 

·Intact, approximately 54 percent d. $318 million ot the State's 

1987 Medicaid budget, which is $585.l million, is earmarked for health 

care of the elderly. Of the $318 million, $274 million will go for 

long term care in nursing homes. This nursing home bill represents 5.6 

percent of the total state budget. It patterns .of care and financing 

are not modified by the year 2000, these costs for nursing home care 

will rise from $274 million to $1.4 billion, or 7.9 percent of the 

state budget. 

Individuals and families pay most of the remaining bill for long 

term care, with other public programs and private insurance 

contributing little. This causea tremendous hardship for those 

unfortunate people in need of services. In 1984, of the $30.2 billion 

of out-of-pocket health care expenditures incurred by the elderly, 42 

percent, or $12.7 billion, went for nursing home care. That amount 

represents the impoverishment not only of thousands of individuals, but 

sometimes their spouses as well. 

When a married nursing home resident is Medicaid eligible, the 

community-residing spouse is allowed a monthly income of only 

approximately $350 from their joint resources. This is not an adequate 

income upon which to survive. 

The current long term care financing system, which leads people 

either to impoverishment or to gaming the system by transferring 

assets, and which results in inappropriate institutionalization, is 
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irrational, inequitable, and inadequate. This system came about by 

default not by design. 

The challenge to the State is to design a comprehensiv~, 

coordinated system which will moderate the growth in State expenditures 

for long term care, assist families to meet ~eir long term care 

·financial needs, and assis~ families to find the care services needed 

by the elderly and their families. The complexity of the long term 

care financing issue requires a multifacted response. 

No single element of society -- neither the individual, the 

family, employers, insurers, service providers, state government, nor 

the federal government -- can meet our overall long term care financing 

needs alone. They must all participate collaboratively in addressing 

the long term care needs of today's and tomorrow's elders. 

In addition, a combination of strategies is essential if we are to 

provide the array of services necessary to meet the needs of the 

elderly in an efficient and cost-effective manner. The problem of 

financing long term care is not just a financing problem. It is a 

financing problem, a service delivery problem, a health promotion and 

research problem, a data collection and a consumer education problem. 

The Commission concluded that better methods of public and private 

financing of long term care are needed, that the delivery system -­

particularly community-based services -- must grow to accommodate our 

demographic shifts, and that long-range preventive measures must be 

taken to improve the well-being of future generations of elders and to 

contai-n the costs of caring for them. 

we made recommendations in five broad categories: 

1. The variety and availability of new methods of private long 

term care financing should be increased to meet the demands of 
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diverse market segments and to moderate the increase in pressures 

on public treasuries at the state and federal level. These 

methods include home equity conversion, insurance, health 

maintenance organizations, continuing care retirement communities, 

and other innovative alternatives. The more private financing 

options which are ·available, the greater will be the opportunity 

to avoid the negative consequences of the present system -­

spousal impoverishment, asset transfer, and growing public 

liability. 

Similar to action being considered at the federal level by 

the Office of Personnel Management, the Governor plans 

specifically to offer long term care insurance to State employees 

to set an example for other employers. In addition, he plans to 

convene Connecticut business and labor leaders to focus attention 

on employer sponsorship of long term care benefits and other 

bus~ness implications of a growing elderly population. 

The Governor has directed appropriate State agencies to 

expand the flexibility of current State-sponsored home equity 

conversion programs and to remove current barriers to the use of 

home equity conversion now inherent in our Medicaid eligibility 

standards. 

In addition, the Office of Policy and Management responded to 

an invitation from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation to submit a 

grant proposal for the exploration of public and private 

partnerships in financing long term care. The proposal was acted 

on in July and will be funded beginning in September, at which 

time data collection and analysis efforts will begin, with 

simulations of various proposals to follow. 
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'l'he availability of and financing for home and 

community-based alternatives must be expanded. 'l'hese home and 

community-based services complement and sustain family caregiving 

efforts and, as an alternative to institutional care, represent 

savings to the individual, the family and potentially the public 

sector. 

As financing options are created, available services with 

appropriate cost controls must also be expanded. 'l'he Governor 

plans to begin encouraging the development of community-based 

alternatives by expanding Medicaid coverage of adult day care. 

In addition, new techniques for controlling costs, and tor 

managing the appropriateness and quality of long term care 

services are being expanded. In Fairfield County, Connecticut, 

pre-admission screening of Medicaid-eligible hospital patients 

.awaiting nursing home placement has led to the successful 

diversion of 24.4 percent of them to community-based care. With 

case-management these individuals have been cared for in the 

community at a monthly savings of $778 compared to expected costs 

for institutional care. Pre-screening and case-management for 

Medicaid-eligible nursing home candidates will be expanded 

statewide this year. 

Long-range strategies must be developed and supported to 

enhance the personnel resources available to meet long term care 

needs and to moderate the increase in demand for long term care 

services. 'l'hese positive long range strategies should include the 

extended employment of older adults, disease prevention and health 

promotion, expanded support of research into the diseases of old 

;:) IV 
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age, and expanded support tor the training of health care 

professionals. 

Increased financing options and expanded service delivery 

systems will not be sufficient it we do not simultaneously work to 

reduce the numbers of elderly who will be in need ot long term 

care in the future. 

Consumer education programs regarding long term care 

financing should be expanded. A more educated populace will 

understand the need for timely personal financial planning 

efforts. Furthermore, consumer education, together with an 

effective program of consumer protection, will enable individuals 

to make selective, informed choices. As a consequence, traumas 

such as spousal impoverishment may be reduced and pressure tor 

public support moderated. 

The Governor has directed the State Department on Aging to 

enhance its current educational efforts and to collaborate with 

other State departments in establishing public education outreach 

programs. Similarly, the Departments of Insurance and Consumer 

Protection have been instructed to intensify public education and 

consumer protection programs. 

5. Data collection efforts and public dissemination of 

information regarding long term care service utilization must be 

improved. The lack of data, particularly longitudinal data which 

describes long term care service utilization over time, presents 

design and product-pricing difficulties for government, providers, 

insurers and other entities which may provide long term care 

risk-sharing, e.g. health maintenance organizations and continuing 

care retirement communities. 
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Information is the key to managing risk, and its availability 

will therefore expedite the entry into the market of both more 

products and more product sponsors. 

'l'he state has already undertaken projects to coordinate 

access to the data collected by 13 State health and social service 

agencies and to analyze its existing long term care data base. 

'l'he Commission also recommended to the Governor that federal 

action in support of state and private initiatives be enlisted. 

'l'he federal government has played and continues to play an 

important role in providing health care for the elderly. Among other 

things, the federal government supports nursing home care through the 

Medicaid program at a cost of approximately $15 billion per year, 

thereby meeting one-half of the public sector's share of the nation's 

nursing home bill for the elderly~ Given the projected increase in 

demand for health care services, however, this level of funding not 

only must continue, but it must increase and it must be supplemented by 

additional federally-funded health care strategies. 

While the current political climate and the realities of decades 

of federal deficit spending impinge upon the ability and the 

inclination of the federal government to play a leadership role in 

responding to the impending crisis in long term care financing, a 

federal role is integral to the ultimate resolution of the problem. A 

response by Connecticut alone or by a collection of states cannot be 

sustained without complementary national initiatives. 

Consequently, Governor O'Neill will work with the Connecticut 

congressional delegation, other members of Congress and the National 
~ 

Governor's Association to strive for an appropriate and expended 

federal response. 
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Tax incentives are the most obvious means by which the federal 

government can encourage private financing of long term. care. There 

are currently very limited financial incentives_ for the private 

financing of long term. care through savings, insurance, pension or 

family contributions. 

By creating tax incentives and removing tax barriers to new, as 

well as existing, private methods of financing long term. care, 

employers, individuals, insurers and other financial institutions will 

be encouraged to expand their roles-in long term. care. 

In view of the essential role families play in providing inform.al 

long term. care services to their elders, the federal government should 

expand incentives and support for these family efforts. current tax 

incentives for family caregiving are very difficult to qualify for 

because of the restrictive definitions and tests of "dependency." 

Modifications to the tax code should be made to facilitate the use of 

tax advantage programs, thereby creating incentives for, or in some 

cases, financially enabling, -family members to care for their elders. 

The federal role also should include an expansion, rather than the 

retrenchment we have experienced in the past few years, of federal 

funding in the field of geriatric research and the training of health 

pr~fessionals in the field of aging. The federal government also must 

expand its activities in the areas of health promotion and disease 

prevention, which will help the elderly retain their well-being later 

in life and will help to contain the costs of their care. Finally, the 

federal government must look more favorably on applications for 

Medicare and Medicaid waivers from those states interested in testing 

new models of long term. care delivery and financing. 
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Connecticut, for example, because ct its size and the depth ct its 

financial, business, and intellectual resources, would be an ideal site 

for demonstrating alternative financing and delivery models. And the 

State is interested in playing a leadership role in this capacity. 

Without establishing any new entitlement requiring major new 

outlays in federal revenue, the federal government can continue and 

enhance its essential role in shaping a more humane, cost-effective, 

rational system of providing and paying for long term care. 
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GOVERNOR O'NEILL'S RESPONSE TO THE GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION 
ON PRIVATE AND PUBLIC RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCING 

LONG TERM CARE FOR THE ELDERLY 

AN ACTION PLAN FOR THE ELDERLY 

Connecticut's older population, like the nation's, is growing. 
While the majority of our older citizens will enjoy good health, social 
well-being and will remain productive, increased numbers of them 
reaching their seventh and eighth decades will suffer some ·of the 
serious diseases and disabilities associated with old age and will 
require long term chronic care. The need for this type of care will 
place significant demands on families, on those who deliver health care 

. . 

and on those -- including the State of Connecticut -- who finance long 
term care. 

A review of our changing population, its needs and the growing 
impact of those·changes on families and the State budget compelled me 
to appoint a special Comission to assess the State's continued ability 
to finance long term care and to seek ways to better meet the long term 
care challenge before us in a rational and compassionate manner. 

The Governor's Commission on Private and Public Responsibilities 
for Financing Long Term Care for the Elderly ably addressed its charge 
and involved the widest spectrum of opinions in studying the issues. I 
have carefully reviewed the Commission's findings and support the 
conclusions it has reached and recommendations it has made. 

The projected need for long term care and the expenditures 
associated with meeting that need will add to the current burden on 
individual and family resources. In addition, it will strain State 
resources. Unless steps are taken to moderate the growth in 
expenditures for long term care, individuals and families can expect to 
spend $1.2 billion by the year 2000 for long term care, primarily in 
nursing homes, and the State can expect to pay $1.4 billion. This 



latter figure represents a staggering increase over our 1986-1987 
budgeted expenditure of $274 million. 

T~e challenge to the State is to take th~ steps ~eeded to moderate 
those projected expenditures and to provide quality care for our older 
citizens. The Commission has outlined a number of constructive 
reconunendations that can and should be acted upon. As they so 
appropriately point out, there is no single solution, nor is there any 
one sector that can assume so1e responsibility for meeting the future 
long term care needs of Connecticut's older population. That 
responsibility must be shared among the State government, the federal 
government, the private sector and families and individuals. 
Connecticut, however, can and will take the lead by assuming its share 
of the responsibility and stimulating action within the other sectors. 

Specifically, we need to create new options for financing long 
term care, to increase our efforts to expand cost effective ways to 
deliver long term care and to develop long range strategies to contain 
the rate of growth in the numbers of elderly who will need long term 
care in the future. 

In Connecticut we have to begin this process immediately. Our 
consciences and our debt to our older citizens will not allow us to 
wait for others to take the first necessary steps. Simultaneously, 
however, we also will begin the process of enlisting the private 
sector's and the federal government's support as we strive for a 
solution to the truly national problem of providing for our older 
citizens. 

To begin our response, I am taking the following steps to 
implement the recommendations put forth by the Governor's Commission on 
the Private and Public Reponsibilities for Financing Long Term Care for 
the Elderly. 
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STATE ACTION 

I am designating Anthony V. Milano, Secretary of the Office of 
Policy and Management, to oversee the implementation of Conwnission 
reconwnendations. 

Jhe Office of Policy and Management coordinates the implementation 
of executive policy by all agencies of State government. 
Consistent with the importance of the issues raised by the 
Comission's Report and the necessity for coordinated involvement 
by a variety of State agencie~ in response, I am vesting overall 
responsibility for overseeing the implementation of State policy 
regarding the Conwnission's findings in Anthony V. Milano, 
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management. He will 
coordinate the activities of the Long Term Care Commission; the 
Departments of Health Services, Income Maintenance, Aging, 
Insurance, Administrative Services and Consumer Protection; and 
the Connecticut Housing Finance Authority. As necessary, he also 
will employ the resources of the Center on Aging at the University 
of Connecticut to anticipate and plan for Connecticut's long term 
care needs. 

Conwnissioner Negri of the Department of Administrative Services 
will begin to develop a plan to make appropriate long term care 
insurance products available to State employees who wish to 
purchase them. 

We must lead by example. By making long term care products 
available to our own employees, Connecticut can, as an employer, 
exert a market-place influence which will aid in the development 
of private long term care financing products. 

Executive Director Dubno of the Connecticut Housing Finance 
Authority will begin to explore suitable means for introducing 
greater flexibility into his authority's home equity conversion 
programs. 

-3-
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Connecticut has been a leader in the development of home equity 
conversion financing options. We must remain a leader. The 
Co11111ission's report has provided useful insights into the actual 
market place reaction to our hom~ equity conversion programs. The 
report also has identified long term care as an under-utilized 
purpose for obtaining home equity conversion loans. 

With the specific need for long term care financing in mind, 
Executive Director Dubno can tailor the current program.for home 
equity conversion loans so as to make the proceeds of these loans 
easily available to people who would use them to finance their 
long term care needs. 

C01111issioner Heintz of the Department of Income Maintenance has 
changed the Department's policy of treating home equity conversion 
proceeds as income and will begin to identify individuals who may 
be newly eligible for State Supplemental Assistance as a result of 
the change. 

1·am grateful to the Co11111ission for having identified the 
regulatory anomaly of treating loan proceeds as income. As 
pointed out in its report, this practice frustrated the use of 
home equity conversion proceeds for legitimate health needs by, in 
some cases, disallowing borrowers from participation in other 
entitlement programs. Comissioner Heintz has changed the policy 
and will work with the Department on Aging to identify persons who 
might.now be eligi.ble for State Supplemental Assistance. 

Co11111issioner Gillies of the Insurance Department will begin to 
review Insurance Department regulations and the legislation under 
which they are promulgated. The Department will assess the 
suitability of our existing regulatory framework to the 
development of new and innovative long term care insurance 
products. 
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Conmissioner Heintz will take the steps necessary to make adult 
day-care expenses reimbursable under the Medicaid program. 

Since· 1983, the Medicaid program has been reimbursing adult day 
care services for the elderly under the home and comunity-based 
service waiver in Fairfield County. On the basis of that 
experience, and in light of the Comission's _Report, the State of 
Connecticut secured federal approval to offer adult day care 
througho_ut the state under a new and expanded comunity-based 
service waiver. I am pleased that this waiver expansion, together 
with pre-admission screening, will be implemented statewide in the 
near future. 

In addition, I have asked Commissioner Heintz to initiate the 
steps necessary at the state and federal levels to add Adult Day 
Care to the regular Medicaid State Plan in order to make these 
valuable services available to a wider population. 

I also am asking Comissioner Heintz to determine whether other 
services~ such as respite care, should be added as Medicaid 
reimbursable expenses under the State plan. 

Conmissioner Klinck of the Department on Aging will begin to take 
lead responsibilities for alerting our citizens to their long term 
care needs. -

It is unacceptable that as many as four out of five of our 
citizens may be laboring under the erroneous belief that they have 
insurance coverage which will protect them from the expenses 
attendant upon long term care. What they do not know can very 
seriously ~urt them and their families. 

Nursing home care can quickly drain a family's financial 
resources, leaving a spouse impoverished and burdening subsequent 
generations both financially and emotionally. Therefore, the 
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Department on Aging will begin to intensify its long term care 
public education effort. Where constituencies other than that of 
the Department on Aging should be included in the public education 
outreach program, Secretary Milano will direct the assignment of 
public education responsibilities to other State agencies. 

Conaissioner Heslin of the Department of Consumer Protection and 
C01111issioner Gillies of ·the Insurance Department will begin to 
intensify public education and consumer protection programs 
regarding long tenn care insurance products. 

As new insurance products become available, the consumer education 
and consumer protection functions of the Department of Insurance 
and the Department of Consumer Protection must rise to the needs 
of our citizens. 

Our people must understand more completely _their long term ca~e 
needs. They must understand the benefits and services provided by 
long term care products. And they must be able to assess the 
relative costs and values of the benefits and services offered to 
theni. 

Connecticut's people also must be protected from falsely 
advertised products and unscrupulous sales practices. 

The Office of Policy and Management under Secretary Milano, on 
behalf of the people of Connecticut, will pursue foundation and 
federal funding for demonstration projects for long term care 
services and financing. 

The search for solutions to the i.mpending crisis in. long term care 
must begin immediately. As one of his first responsibilities as 
executive branch coordinator of this action plan, Secretary Milano 
will oversee the preparation and submission of applications for 
federal and national foundation funding for demonstration projects 

• 
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to explore·innovative ways of providing and financing long term 
care. 

The Office of Policy and Management un~er Secretary Milano-will 
begin to develop the reliable data base we need in order to make 
informed judgments about our future long term care needs. 

In the course of the Co11111ission's research, one point has become 
sta~tlingly clear. We do not have the specific information 
necessary to respond in· a cost-effective manner to our 
population's long term care needs. 

The Office of Policy and Management already has begun to 
coordinate the Departments of Health and Income Maintenance to 
make certain that our information on service utilization and needs 
is gathered appropriately and assembled into useful formats. That 
office will continue to do what is necessary to achieve a 
comprehensive and useful data base. 

To.emphasize further the need for a coherent and informed long 
term care financing strategy, long term care will be a principal 
focus at this October's Governor's Day on Aging. 

I will submit legislative proposals appropriate to achieving the 
goals and objectives set forth in the Comission's report. 

As our response to our people's long term care financing and 
service needs evolves, I will be working with the legislative 
leadership to develop such legislation as may be necessary to 
effect meaningful and lasting solutions. To prepare the 
legislature for these proposals, I am transmitting the 
Comission's Report to the legislative leadership and ta the 
chairs and ranking members of legislative comittees of 
cognizance, and I have asked the Commission to make itself 
available for legislative briefings. 

-7-



In the fall, I will convene a Governor's Round Table consisting of 
Connecticut business and labor leaders to bring the private 
sector's focus to bear o~ long term care financing. 

As we in the government of the State of Connecticut learn more 
about the need for long term care financing alternatives and as we 
develop experience in terms of the relative merits of the 
alternatives we explore, we must share our knowledge with the 
private sector. 

The private sector should appreciate the long term care crisis 
from a number of perspectives. Private businesses pay public 
taxes and have a vested interest in our efforts to moderate the 
increase in pressure on public treasuries to pay for long term 
care. A private business also should become involved in long term 
care issues out of a concern for productivity. Businesses should 
appreciate the number of working Connecticut residents who are 
also providing care for loved ones. Businesses should appreciate 
the strains inherent in the care giving function and the 
subsequent effect of these strains on workplace productivity. As 
a consequence, businesses will appreciate the need to counsel 
employees about financial planning for future care needs and the 
availability of risk-pooling products which can diminish the 
individual impact of long term care needs. 

To deliver these messages, I will convene business and labor 
leaders from throughout Connecticut to a meeting in the fall at 
which time we will present the Commission's report together with 
any new data which we have developed as a result of the other 
activities which are beginning today. 

At that meeting, I hope not only to share data with the private 
sector, but to forge an ongoing program of shared experience which 
will result in a coordinated response by the public and private 
sectors to the needs of our state's and our nation's elderly. 

, 
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STRIVING FOR AN APPROPRIATE FEDERAL RESPONSE 

I will bring the issues raised in the Connission's report before 
the Na~ional Governors' Association at its meeting in July of 1987 
and urge that body to develop a proposal for sharing 
respons1b11ity for the care of our elderly between the state and 
federal governments. 

The National Governor's Association provides an appropriate 
. . 

vehicle for the development of a balanced state government/federal 
government reaction to the long term care financing and service 
crisis. Obviously, public funding for service, training, research 
and demonstration· projects must be shared by the state and federal 
governments. To what extent these responsibilities are allocated 
between the federal and state governments is a question which must 
be dealt with in a reasoned manner. 

I therefore will ask the National Governors' Association to assess 
the appropriate roles which the state and federal governments 
should play in providing for our population's long term care 
financing and service needs. 

I will urge the Connecticut Congressional Delegation to sponsor 
legislation which will broaden the options for long term care 
financing and address on a comprehensive basis our society's need 
for and ability to provide long term care. 

The development of a federal role in providing for our nation's· 
long term care needs requires congressional leadership. I 
therefore will meet with appropriate members of Connecticut's 
congressional delegation to share with them the Commission's 
findings and to urge upon them serious study of the degree to 
which the federal government must bear responsibility for meeting 
increased long term care financing and service needs. 
Specifically, I will ask them to consider the tax incentives 

I 
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described in the Commission's Report and to reconsider recent 
reductions in federal spending on preventive health strategies, 
gerontological research and training of health care employees. 

I will transmit the Conaission's finding to Health and Human 
Services Secretary Otis R. Bowen so as to initiate a dialogue 
directly between Connecticut and the federal government. 

I intend to transmit the Commission's Report directly to Secretary 
Bowen so that he may assess the relationship of our information to 
an appropriate executive-branch national strategy. 

The tasks set forth above are imposing ones but so is the problem 
confronting us. As we complete these first efforts, we must at the 
same time develop the next stage in our response to the problem of long 
term care. We must all work together now to carry out this 16 point 
plan if we are to avoid a $2.6 billion problem in the year 2000. 

-10-
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TRENTON, NJ 
by Willia• P. BrandonL Ph.D., M.P.H. 

Associate Professor of ~olitical Science 
Center for Public Service 

Seton Hall University 

I want to congratulate you, Madam Chairwoman, the Members of 

this Task Force, the Assembly, and the State of New Jersey for 

undertaking this important and timely investigation.-

The subject is 1m2Q£tant, because justice dictates that we 

consider the problems of the current cohort of elderly citizens 

and prudence requires us to prepare our society and government 

for the increased demands that will be generated in about twenty­

five years, when the baby boomers begin to turn 60 or 65. The 

study is tlmitl!..1. because state action must.be developed in 

conjunction with developments at the federal level, such as 

consideration of an expansion of Medicare to include social 

insurance against catastrophic illness. Reexamination of 

domestic social policy is also opportune in light of the relative 

health of the economy after the stagflation of the 1970s. 

Let me begin by explaining how my colleagues at Seton Hall's 

newly inaugurated Center for Public Service and I can contribute 

to your deliberations. The institutional culture at Seton Hall 

and the personal convictions of our faculty lead us to emphasize 

the value-questions involved in public policy issues. Of 

course, any useful consideration of values must be based on 

accurate empirical knowledge. 

Along with graduate teaching in the Master's program in Public 

Administration, we at the Center for Public Service are charged 

with the twin duties of community service and academic research. 

An example of the compatibility of our service and research 
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is the conference that we held on paying for uncompensated care 

under New Jersey's ORG system for reimbursing hospitals. The 

paper• and discussion• at this conference ware published as a 

symposium entitled "The All-Payers DRG System: Has New Jersey 

found an Efficient and Ethical Way to Provide Indigent Care?" in 

the prestigious BYll•tin_gf_tb•-B•~-Ig~k-A~ag•m%_gf_H•g!~iD§• 
Subsequently, a generous grant from the fund-for New Jersey 

permitted us to distribute copies of the iYll•tin to decision­

makers and opinion-leader• in New Jersey and throughout the 

nation. Legislation embodying soma of the principal 

recommendations of the conference is now being implemented and 

researcher• ar• following some of the leads suggested at ~he 

conference. 

Our interest in issues relating to the finance and delivery 

of health care in New Jersey ha• become even greater since last 

May, when Seton Hall became a Graduate School of Medic~l 

lducation. We at the Canter for Public Servic~ expect to play an 

important role, in the State's second graduate medical school. 

Since you are at the beginning of your deliberations and 

have asked that today~ • hearings consider national long-term care 

policy, I want to devote my statement to general principles--or 

options of the broadest sort. Such fundamental consideration is 

often neglected, because analysts are busy grappling with the 

important details of particular policies, or foreclosed, because 

the "policy community• takes some unarticulated assumptions for 

granted. 

The Context: Security for Retired Workers 

We may be at an important turning point in developing health 

and social policy for the U.S. population. The period from 1935 

through the Nixon administration accomplished the task of 

securing income maintenance and basic health coverage for retired 

workers. It also saw the protection of workers against periods 

of unemployment, sickness and disability. The period began with 

38x 
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Retite~ent Income Security net of 197~ or fL ~3-10~)-

ndddle years. 

Not.r that the ba~ic need!': of moi:;t ~eniors r\l'.'<? fl'.~t,. n=•-• 

probl~ms hava becorn~ Pp~nrent. 

ti,~ ctisis th~t led to Lh".'! Grecne::r-""n Cov•;:;,J.r~.1.on·~ "'.'"~"':'ln,..tl1.'n 0f 

Soci,,.,1 Security fin;,nco.i,: P.nd the hi~to,:lc cO"n,•;:-o,..,l!'"'.'"l n::- J.':)"J (1)-

l'n<.l r~rtly due to th"! 1:"?lng of J\r,:1-:?ricl'I. Th~ f:,,_•or..,lil~ r:~c'.<.•J.•-1Ll.on 

of this crisis secured retirement benefit at le~,;:t until the b::1 by 

boom draws heevily on th~ Social Security Tru~t Funds (~). 

Although ,:::ome adjustment will ~J"'ost c':!rtl":l.nly b".'! n-=-~d"'.r.1. ln Lh'c! 

nP.!rt c:~ntury,. t.hq .t.mh"'l~nc~!I! ?rA nnl lkely to h~ r.o gr.·~r-1-. !"'l! to h~ 

unf h: 0 .ble. The statq o( lh':'! Ucdicec·e Trust Fund is Pnolh-:!r 

story,. hot.1ever. It is i1nrartant for i,tt.'"!ution to b~ r,-,f_d to th<? 

undorlying imbalance in lladicere be(ore deficits create P crisis 

m~ u t"" 11 l y ( 3 ) • 

J A U • S • l'"' I: f •:n, "1 l CO l"'I'"' i_ ""'i, :I. 0 '1 ('fl ~'JC ! "' _I !c,.. ~ ,_, >_ i. t. }' f: - ;- n ,: l""I r 
r: J II " J -- [; ~ I'.',_, t_ t ( !-I l3 r: h i J.l 9 :: 0 n , u C : ~ 0 V ":n:- n '" ~ I\ t r '- J. n t J II 'J O r ( i C '"' r 
•'""'HUY J.91!3). 

? • S .- ,..,, ., f ,:_, ~ ~ ~ ... :" ~ ~" l "" r f' ..,, , 1 .l t. J ,_-,. 1-. t , ~ r l; ~ , , J ~ ! .. ·, i 1 ~ ! ·, ,. , ~ r ..--. 1 I_ ~- .i. -: ~ 
~:(_R1••;J?t_!~o,;1.1r:~\1Y._1''"-"(q1 __ TT' (fl•~·-• Yr,rl:_! {:e>q,lw, ''""'~"!,···j.,:.-_,) <'!l•_I ·•···· 
;;-,i:·U,,,. U--r.U,.l.c 1~, foll.r,,r.~k:l.nn fnr.· 80ci~l !3~c1.1ri!:y ('·•r-~hin·:::ct.on, 
iJ 1..:: ·;_ lo~ IJ r: oo!d J\ 'c'~-- i i:i. r. U. t11 :~ lc;i,-;: · Ei"J '..if.··· ··-- ·· · ····- --

3. See, for example, the report developed by 
"representatives from 172 different health, health-related, 
business government and consumer groups" published as The_Health 
fglig~_}g§gd§_fg~_tb§_Am~rig~n_f§QR!g (n.p.: Health Policy 
Agenda, 1987), PP• 139-145. 
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Among the most pressing of the new problems is the need for 

non-acute health care and social supports for those who encounter 

difficulties in living independently. Demographics, better 

health services, greater wealth and the other· improvements 

worked together to increase the proportion of elderly from less 

than 6.9 percent of the U.S. population in 1940 to 11.3 percent 

in 1980. Those living to older ages increased even more rapidly 

(4). These factors made a new long-term care industry possible. 

Hedicare and Medicaid are usually credited with spawning the 

nursing homes, although the most recent scholarship suggests that 

the Kerr-Hills Act of 1960 (FL 86-778) is actually responsible 

for the scope and structure of the industry (5). 

This context of forty years of progress in assuring adult 

workers of relative economic security in both employment and 

retirement helps to explain why the issues of catastrophic 

illness and long-term health care have risen to the top of the 

national social policy agenda. It is natural to wish to complete 

the basic security system for the elderly by providing Medicare 

coverage for the entire expenses of catastrophic illnesses that 

require hospitalization and by developing some coverage for 

institutional long-term care. The problems of a relatively small 

number of Medicare beneficiaries who experience catastrophic 

expenses in a year led Secretary Bowen to propose his plan to 

cover catastrophic illness care under Medicare. Yet there can be 

4. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of· the Census, 
~t~.t!BSi~el Ab§tX§~.t gf .tb§-¥nites_§t§te§_j9~3 (Wa~hington, DCt 
bovernment Prlnling ijfflce, g4JJ, p. 2i; U.S. Departmont of 
llealth and Human S9rvices, Public Health Service, Uealth_QBited 
a.ti!.t~ff_J,9..QJ.: .iDd I.[itY.ID.tign i1:g{flB.& Frepubl ication Copy, 11118 
Fub. No. (FHS) 84-1232 (Hyattavi Ie, HD: NAtion Center for lfPAlth 
St~tisticsl December 1983), p. 171; Dorothy P. Rice and J~cob J. 
Feldm~n, " iving Longer in the United States: Demographic 
Ch~nqes and Health Negds of the Elderly," Hilbank_ttemorlal_Fund 
Qy~~ig~lxLH~§l.tb_•ng_Jg~i~.tx 61 (1983): 36~. 

5. James M. Brasfield, "The UDriagement of InvisJble 
Policies: Medicaid and Long Term Care," paper presented at the 
meeting of the Southwestern Social Science Association, Dallas 
TX, March 18-21, 1987. 

L-fOx 
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no ~••1 catastrophic coverage without covering the catastrophe of 

extended stays in nursing homes. 

It is typical of the pluralist, interest-group politics 

practiced in the U.S. to focus on these genuine gaps and to try 

to do something about them. Our political system is often said 

to eschew comprehensive rational efforts to totally solve new 

problems; instead, change generally comes "incrementally," in 

little steps that build on the last change. The slow accretion 

of social insurance programs benefitting the aldarly is a good 

example of this incrementalism. Whereas other industrial 

countries began their government health insurance programs with 

workers, private health insurance obtained as fringe benefits of 

employment supplied U.S. workers with basic health benefits. 

Social insurance for health was added to measures already in 

place to provide retirement income. Consequently, we have a 

fairly complete, if slightly jerrybuilt, social insurance 

structure t~ protect retir~e• and the disabled. Most workers, of 

course, are fairly wall protected so long as they maintain 

employment. Large numbers of people falling outside these 

groups, however, have no meaningful coverage. 

Thus, reflection on the great progress that has been made in 

providing security to retired citizens leads to the question 

whether social and governmental energies ought to be devoted to 

adding another crucial increment to reduce the remaining gaps or 

whether the needs of other groups or age-cohorts in society ought 

to receive attention. Young families faced with problems of day­

care and housing and the striking evidence of need for programs 

to enhance the health of infants and pregnant women are 

frequently mentioned. 

Ivan in forums where questions of relative need are 

foreclosed, an appreciation of advances in the security and 

financial status of the elderly is important for policy-making. 

The fact that the economic status of the elderly as a class has 
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improved radically since the passage of Medicare in the 1960s 

lies behind the movement to force more affluent beneficiaries to 

bear soma of the costs of programs for all the elderly. Taxation 

of Social Security benefits began with the historic Social 

Security compromise of 1983; Congressman Stark's original 

proposals tor catastrophic insurance in the current session of 

Congress taxed affluent beneficiaries to pay tor a generous 

benefit package. The bill that was passed by the House in July 

involves a slightly disguised form of income-related beneficiary 

cost-sharing. 

Thra• Broad Options 

Three general directions can be followed in providing long­

term care (6). 

0 

0 

0 

Maintain the current system perhaps 
ameliorating it somewhat with government 
support for home care and other programs 
will stabilize the number of elderly who 
expensive institutional long-term care. 

that 
need 

Establish a compulsory program of social 
insurance that will cover all long-term care 
or long-stay institutional care. 

roster the development of private insurance 
for long-term care, including catastrophic 
long-stay institutional care. 

The current ayatea provides a perverse public catastrophic 

insurance tor long-term institutional care. Medicaid, America's 

federal-state program of welfare medicine, functions as an 

insurance program with a gigantic and variable deductible: a 

beneficiary's entire savings. 

Although this arrangement does prdvide a safety net for 

those needing institutional care, it has serious drawbacks. Too 

often, there are no home care alternatives to expensive 

institutionalization that Medicaid will have to support. The 

6. This section draws on William P. Brandon, "Paying for 
Long-Term Institutional Care: Social Insurance versus Means­
Tested Welfare," paper presented at the annual meeting of the 
American Political Science Association, New Orleans LA, August 
29-September 1, 1985. 
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large proportion of Medicaid funds feeding the nursing home 

industry is a distortion of the original intention of Medicaid, 

which was designed to provide health care to those eligible for 

categqrical welfare programs of income support. The largest 

group of poor people needing such care are the women and children 

receiving Aid to families with Dependent Children (AfDC). 

Moreover, the i~trusion of Medicaid into long term care 

financing has resulted in a particularly egregious two-class 

system of medical care. Long-term care institutions are 

notorious for separating into those that will accept new patients 

on Medicaid and those that select private payers or sometimes 

only those patients who are thought likely to remain self­

payingA In the area of acute hospital care New Jersey.has 

eliminated such discrimination by payment source by fully 
-

reimbursing hospitals for otherwise uncompensated care. The 

State has accomplished this goal at little cost to itself through 

its unique DRG system (Diagnosis Related Groups), which sets the 

reimbursement rates that hospitals can charge (7). My 

understanding is that ~ha State has also made serious effo·rts to 

control such discrimination in nursing homes. Throughout the . . 
country, however, nursing homes practice the kind of 

discrimination that hospitals and other institutional providers 

would not attempt. 

finally, policy makers need to be sensitive to the harsh 

consequences for individuals of Medicaid financing for nursing 

home care. Most of us have become aware of individuals or 

couples who are faced with the Robson's choice of either allowing 

the expenses of long-term care to make them destitute or 

divesting themselves of assets and income in order to achieve 

Medicaid eligibility. Pauperizing self-reliant individuals after 

7. See the Seton Hall DRG Conference "The All-Payers DRG 
System: Has New Jersei found an Efficient and Ethical Way to 
Provide Indigent Care? in the Byll•t;n 2!_tb•-H•~-I2~k-A~Ad§m~ 
gt_H§gi~in• 62 (July-August 1986): 62 -701. 
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a lifetime of prudence and financial responsibility produces 

unmeasurable mental stress. The physical difficulties attendant 

upon impoverishment are especially severe for the spouse who is 

not institutionalized. Something is clearly wrong when 

significant numbers of the only major group that is covered by 

social insurance (Social Security and Medicare) are forced to 

rely on means-tested welfare for extended medical care. 

Social insurance, non-voluntary programs covering all 

persons in a broad and therefore heterogeneous group by virtue of 

their group membership, can remedy this situation. Because the 

need for long-term care is ~•lati~•l~ rare in the elderly 

population, but financially catastrophic when it occurs, extended 

stays in long-term care facilities are precisely the sort of 

contingency against which insurance can be effective. 

In the current ideological milieu social insurance programs 

are unpopular. A major reason why they are dismissed is that 

almost all are redistributive. Because all beneficiaries or 

potential beneficiaries do not have the means to contribute their 

•actuarially fair• premium, those who are more affluent must pay 

premiums or taxes that will keep the social insurance pool in 

balance. 

As a somewhat disgruntled citizen of New Jersey, I cannot 

resist reminding the Task Force that New Jersey uses its 

regulatory control over supposedly private insurance to 

redistribute premiums from good drivers to bad drivers. (I 

gather that some similar redistribution now occurs in the case of 

homeowners insurance.) The redistributive aspects of straight­

forward social insurance seem to me to be much less objectionable 

than these hidden regulatory surtaxes, which are not based on the 

ability to pay. 

The strength of broad social insurance programs is that 

everyone in some clearly definable group is entitled to the 

benefit if it is needed. Since the program is widely used, it 
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does not carry the stigma that usually accompanies means-tested 

welfare programs. 

Contrary to popular perceptions, social insurance can also 

be cost-effective. Although prudent governments attend to major 

demographic changes, social insurance schemes are organized on a 

pay-as-you-go basis. Thus large reserves are unne~essary. The 

size of social insurance programs produce very large economies 

of scale. Moreover, profits, marketing expenses and much of the 

administrative overhead of private insurance companies are 

unnecessary in a government operation. The concentration of so 

much buying power also permits government to impose cost control. 

The disadvantages, which are probably decisive for the 

current era, are twofold. Social insurance converts private 

dollars for a social service into government dollars. The 

current aversion to increased public expenditures and the 

unwillingness to increase taxes makes forthright ·social insurance 

for long-term care an unlikely prospect. The other major problem 

is that our government has always had difficulty in controlling 

the increase in demand that usually follow~ new social insurance 

coverage. Private insurance may also entail such "moral hazard," 

but private carriers can always raise the rates for classes of 

high-users (or hold indemnity benefits constant in the face of 

increasing costs of care). Nowadays private companies are also 

better able to impose cost controls on providers than formerly. 

This Task Force will also probably conclude that any 

expansion in social insurance~ like the current proposals for 

catastrophic health insurance, must be developed and implemented 

at the federal level. 

Private insurance for long-term catastrophic care has not 

developed. It is important to ask why a principal feature of the 

health care system serving middle-class families is not widely 

available in the long-term care field. 

Perhaps the chief problem is that the actuarially fair cost 
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of adequate, effective long-term care insurance is prohibitive if 

purchased at retirement or even later, when potential insureds 

recognize that current levels of personal risk for long-term care 

justify the purchase of insurance. Although middle~aged workers 

tend to have more disposable income, it is hard to sell insurance 

for potential instltutionalization that may or may not come about 

years after the initial purchase. The problem is undoubtedly due 

in part to the well-documented fact that most people (including a 

large percentage of retirees) believe that Medicare supplemented 

by private "Medigap" insurance policies covers nursing home care. 

Yet even if government and insurance companies succeed in 

correcting this information failure, it seems unlikely that the 

typical American male (who makes decisions on such matters) will 

subscribe to long-term care insurance until institutionalization 

in a nursing home is a real possibility. 

Another part of the problem is that our experience with 

private health insurance, unlike life insurance, involves 

essentially "pay-as-you-go" annual policies rather than building 

large trust funds. Health insurance has taught us to expect and 

to trust service benefits. This expectation leaves insurance 

companies with the difficult problem of engineering benefits far 

into the future and developing reserves that will enable them to 

pay possibly inflated costs incurred many years after the policy 

was initiated. 

There is a more positive side to the possibility of private 

insurance for long-term care. It is possible to envision a 

partnership between government and the private insurance industry 

in which government fosters the growth of home care programs to 

reduce the demand for long-term institutional care. In return, 

increased private coverage against the risks of catastrophic 

long-term care will buffer Medicaid from some of the demand that 

will come in the twenty-first century when the baby boom becomes 

elderly. 
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A little-discussed aspect of all the catastrophic proposals 

during this past year may result in increased interest by private 

insurance companies in developing and marketing long-term care 

· insurance. It is quite possible that the addition of 

catastrophic hospital insurance to Medicare will make 

supplemental "Hedigap" insurance policies unattractive. The loss 

of this market niche may motivate insurance companies to 

compensate by pioneering new insurance policies for long-term 

care. 

Although private insurance can only be a solution for that 

part of the population which is relat~vely affluent, a partial 

solution may be better than no solution at all. Aside from the 

obvious problem of insurance-generated demand, there are two 

dangers. The most likely is that a partial solution that further 

separates the elderly population into affluent, insurance­

protected senior-citizens and unprotected, potentially indigent 

retirees will lead to greater segregation into classes of long­

term care institutions. Thus, effective regulation may be 

necessary to dampen the likely effects of economic inequalities. 

The other danger is that the availability of insurance 

reimbursement may monetize much of the care that is now 

delivered without charge in hom~s by family, friends and 

neighbors. There is a lQng history in American health care of 

voluntary service and philanthropy being replaced by charges and 

other forms of reimbursement. Such substitution not only. 

increases the dollar costs of services, but risks discouraging 

and devaluing the personal commitment of family, friends and 

neighbors. Countries that encourage volunteerism in this area 

are said to save money and improve the quality of services. 

If the general public ever begins to understand that 

Medicare does not cover long-term care, and if this• understanding 

generates a boom in long-term care insurance, it will be 

important to make sure that private policies actually provide 



adequate coverage tor the money charged. It would be 

extraordinarily sad to see the abuse• by some of the Medigap 

insurer• who seemed to promise a lot and deliver very little 

repeated in insurance for long-term care. 

Canclu• ian1 Pra• pect• and Pradictiana 
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It i • vary reasonable to ask in conclusion about the chances 

that each option will become our future reality. 

The Task force has already heard positive reports about the 

future prospects tor private insurance and it will undoubtedly 

hear a great deal more on this subject. Despite the strides that 

have received so much attention in the last couple of years, I am 

• keptical that a significant proportion of America's elderly will 

ever be covered by private long-term care insurance. If private 

insurance does become a major payer of long-term care bills, it 

i • unlikely to be important until well into the next century. 

We must be clear about what constitutes "significant 

coverage.• A modest criterion for judging the success of the 

private insurance. option would be for 20 percent of those over 70 

to have adequate private lorig-t~rm care coverage. Undoubtedly we 

will hear many reports of rapid growth in the number of long­

term care policies before ~he criterion is approached; increases 

of more than 100 percent are not unlikely. Very high growth 

rates, which are relatively meaningless, can be expected when the 

original base is low. In this respect, long-term care insurance 

may resemble the record of the Health Maintenance Organization 

(HMO) program (which, almost a decade and a half after the first 

federal HMO legislation, only enrolls slightly more than ten 

percent of the US population) (8). 

Part of the problem, of course, is that voluntary private 

insurance cannot grow until Americans learn that they need to 

8. InterSudy reported that HMO• enrolled 27.7 million 
members in the first quarter of 1987, according to l§digin§ §DQ 

'
••flt 41 (17 August 1987~: 3. See generally, Lawrence D. !rown, 
Ql ~-r•n~_H.altb_C,£• £9Ani~atignirrHMQarll~[•~•£&l_fgl!~~ 
Was ng~on, De: The roo ings Ins£itu~ on, ~ ~r. 
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purchase protection against long-term care costs. Education 

always takes a great deal of time. Fortunately, there is quite a 

long time tor thorough education, because the public problem 

really becomes severe only in the twenty-first century. 

In the meantime we must continue to cope with the problems 

that stem from the current system. Although no one would choose 

such a system, it may be unavoidable in the short term. There 

are ways of ameliorating it• worst problems--e.g., by trying to 

humanize • pend-down provisions, liberalizing the most niggardly 

state Medicaid payments to nursing homes, providing more home 

care, and improving the quality of nursing home care. Until the 

baby boom generation retires, however, the elderly may not be 

numerous enough to create the perception of a real crisis in the 

long-term care system as it currently operates. In the first 

quarter of the next century the sudden increase in the number of 

elderly will make long-ignored problem• in long-term care seem 

overwhelming. By then the political power of seniors is likely 

to be irresistible. 

Although social insurance for long-term care has no 

prospects within the next five years, it may have better chances 

in the intermediate to long term. It private insurance is an 

obvious failure, a compulsory government program of long-term 

care insurance may be recognized as the only alternative to the 

inequities and inefficiencies of the current system. Other 

nation• often developed comprehensive health insurance schemes 

out of a patchwork of private and government programs that tailed 

to provide financial security, justice or cost-containment. It 

i• always possible that conditions in the long-term care field 

will become intolerable. For example, a combination of growing 

inequities between those with private insurance or the means to 

pay for extended care and those without, escalating nursing home 

costs, and increasing disparities between states in regard to 

both the services and payments provided for indigent care might 
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make social insurance tor long-term care look attractive. 

If conditions aver become favorable tor the adoption of 

social insurance, a sizable cadre of public health professionals 

who are committed to social responsibility for health care are 

certain to advocate it vigorously. They just might be 

succ•• sful, for a long series of polls show that public opinion 

continues to be favorably disposed to the idea of national health 

insurance. Consensus typically breaks down only at the political 

stage when government institutions grapple with the tough 

questions necessary to produce a particular program. 

It only remains, Madam Chairwoman, to thank you for asking 

me to talk with you. I want to wish you and the other members of 

the Task force well in your important endeavors. You are 

embarked on an exceedingly challenging enterprise. 




